
                 Rochester City Council Special Meeting 

September 17, 2019 

Council Chambers 
7:00 PM 

                 
Agenda 

 
1.  

 

2. 

 

 

 

3.  
 

 

 
 

Rochester City Council Workshop 
September 17, 2019 

Council Chambers 
Immediately following Special Meeting 

 
Agenda 

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Public Input 

 
3. Communications from the City Manager 

 

4. Communications from the Mayor 
 

5. Discussion: Amendment to Chapter 275 regarding downtown 
commercial District   P. 31 

 
6. Presentation: Wayfinding Status Update  P. 33

 
 

9/12/19

1 of 161

Adjournment

adoption    P. 5
Rehabilitation Project second reading and consideration for 
Provisions  of  RSA  79-E  in  Connection  with  a  Proposed 
the Property Located at 73-77 North Main Street Under the 
Resolution Granting Community Revitalization Tax Relief to 

Call to Order



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

2 of 161



 
7. Department Reports  

 
8. Other 

 
9. Non-Public/Non-Meeting 

 
9.1. Non-Public Session per RSA 91-A:3, II (d)  Land 

 
10. Adjournment  

 
 

9/12/19

3 of 161



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

4 of 161



9/12/19

5 of 161



9/12/19

6 of 161



9/12/19

7 of 161



9/12/19

8 of 161



9/12/19

9 of 161



9/12/19

10 of 161



9/12/19

11 of 161



9/12/19

12 of 161



9/12/19

13 of 161



9/12/19

14 of 161



9/12/19

15 of 161



9/12/19

16 of 161



9/12/19

17 of 161



9/12/19

18 of 161



9/12/19

19 of 161



9/12/19

20 of 161



9/12/19

21 of 161



9/12/19

22 of 161



9/12/19

23 of 161



9/12/19

24 of 161



9/12/19

25 of 161



9/12/19

26 of 161



9/12/19

27 of 161



9/12/19

28 of 161



9/12/19

29 of 161



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

30 of 161



Additional recommendation from the 9/9/2019 Planning Board Meeting are highlighted below:  

Amendment to Chapter 27510 of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester the 

Downtown Commercial District 

THE CITY OF ROCHESTER ORDAINS: 

That Chapter 275, Section 20.2.K. (65) of the General Ordinances of the City of Rochester and 

currently before the Rochester City Council, be amended as follows (changes in red): 

(65) Downtown Commercial District. Within the Downtown Commercial (DC) District, 

multifamily is allowed with the following restrictions: 

(a) Multifamily units are prohibited on the ground floor and only permitted non-

residential uses within the Downtown Commercial District shall be located on the ground 

floor. However, parking shall be allowed on the ground floor except for parcels fronting 

any of the following streets: 

       i. Union Street 

      ii. North Main Street South of North Main Street Bridge 

     iii. South Main Street 

                 iv. Wakefield Street south of Columbus Avenue 

                  v. Hanson Street 

      vi. Museum Way 

 

 

(ab) Ancillary ground floor multifamily use, such as entryways, lobbies, utility areas, and 

similar functional spaces shall be minimized to the extent practical.  Remaining Gground 

floor space within the first 50 feet of building depth shall be reserved for non-residential 

uses, as permitted in the DC District, unless otherwise required to comply with state 

building code and/or fire code, for parcels fronting any of the following streets 

(Applicants may apply for a Conditional Use Permit  to the Special Downtown 

Committee to locate these uses between 30 feet and 50 feet):       

 i. Union Street 

 ii. North Main Street south of North Main Street Bridge 

 iii. South Main Street 

 iv. Wakefield Street south of Columbus Avenue 

 v. Hanson Street 

 vi. Museum Way. 

 vi. Columbus Avenue (from Summer Street to South Main Street) 

 

These amendments shall take effect upon passage. 

9/12/19

31 of 161



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

32 of 161



City of Rochester Formal Council Meeting  

AGENDA BILL 

NOTE: Agenda Bills are due by 10 AM on the Monday the week before the City Council Meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

COMMITTEE SIGN-OFF 
COMMITTEE  

 
CHAIR PERSON 
 

 

DEPARTMENT APPROVALS 
DEPUTY CITY MANAGER  

 
CITY MANAGER  

FINANCE & BUDGET INFORMATION 
FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL  

 
SOURCE OF FUNDS 
 

 

ACCOUNT NUMBER  
 

AMOUNT  
 

APPROPRIATION REQUIRED     YES       NO   
 

 

 
LEGAL AUTHORITY 

 
 

 

AGENDA SUBJECT   
 

COUNCIL ACTION ITEM    
INFORMATION ONLY   

FUNDING REQUIRED?   YES    NO  
* IF YES ATTACH A FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM 

RESOLUTION REQUIRED?   YES    NO  
 

FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM?   YES    NO  
 

AGENDA DATE 
 

 

DEPT. HEAD SIGNATURE  
 

DATE SUBMITTED 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS         YES   NO   
  

* IF YES, ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF 
PAGES ATTACHED 

 

9/12/19

33 of 161



 
SUMMARY STATEMENT 

 
 

 

 RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
 

9/12/19

34 of 161



 

 

 

 

2019 

  

August Department Reports: 
 
 7.1      Assessor’s Office P. 37 

 
 7.2      Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services P. 39  

 
 7.3      City Clerk’s Office P. 47 

 

 7.4      Department of Public Works P. 51  
 

 7.5      Economic & Community Development P. 61  
 
 7.6      Finance Office P. 123  

 
 7.7      Planning & Development Department P. 131  

 
 7.8      Recreation & Arena P. 135  

 

 7.9      Rochester Fire Department P. 137  
 

 7.10    Rochester Police Department P. 141  
 
 7.11    Rochester Public Library P. 155  

 
 7.12    Tax Collector’s Office P. 157  

 
 7.13    Welfare Department P. 161 
 

 
 

 

 35 of 161



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

35 of 161



 

 

 

City of Rochester, New Hampshire 
Assessor’s Office 
19 Wakefield Street 

Rochester, New Hampshire 03867-1915 

(603) 332-5109  

Email: assessor@rochester.net 

Web Site: www.rochesternh.net 

 

 

 

September 10, 2019 
 

To:          City Manager/Council 
 
From:      Theresa Hervey, Assessing  
 

Subject:   August Council Report 

  
Revenue Received/Collection Warrants issued: 

       
             Property Record Cards & Copy Revenue                          $33.50 
 

 2019 City Wide Revaluation ongoing 

 Theresa Hervey attended a one day course “So you want to be a Supervisor” at the 
Primex facility in Concord, NH. 

 Nancy Miller and Theresa Hervey joined the Downtown Steering Committee. 

 We have a new Deputy Assessor in our office, Christian Kuhn.  A big “Thank You” to the 
City Council for approving this position. 

 
 

9/12/19

37 of 161

../../Blank%20forms/MISC%20LETTERS/www.rochesternh.net


 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

38 of 161



August 2019 Code Compliance 

Monthly Report 

For the month of August, Code Compliance dealt with 28 properties with a total of 32 documented 

compliance or zoning issues. All property owners in these cases have been notified and received 

Notice of Violations, Citations or Courtesy Visits asking for them to bring their property into 

compliance. Of these 28 properties, 19 of them have been brought into compliance with nine still 

pending. Of the 25 properties with pending issues from July, 21 have been closed and brought 

into compliance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

7

13

5

4 4

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Complaint / Other Trash / Bulky Waste
Pick Up

Property Mainenance Work w/o Permits Zoning Violations

Different Violations

 

19

9

Orgin of Violation

Code Department Citizen Comlpaint

9/12/19

39 of 161



 

 

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Joseph Devine 

Compliance Officer 

23

3

3

Type of Correspondence

NOV Courtesy Visit Investigation

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Ward 1 Ward 2 Ward 3 Ward 4 Ward 5 Ward 6

0

3 3 3 3

11

0 0 0 0

1

2

0 0 0

3

0 0

Breakdown By Wards

NOV Investigation Courtesy Visit Complaint Citation Courtesy Letter

9/12/19

40 of 161



   
 

End of Month Council Report 
 

 

   
      

   

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council of the City of Rochester, the following is a summary of the revenue 
collected and the activities performed by the Department of Building, Zoning and Licensing Services for the month 
of August 2019 with the fiscal Year to Date 

 

      

   

The following data  is subject to adjustment & revision pending further review and analysis as well as year-end closing adjustments. 

 

      

 

Department Revenue 
 

  

      

  

Permit Type August 2019 Year to Date 

Building Permits $44,768.00 $74,772.00 

Electrical Permits $2,831.00 $4,895.00 

Gas Permits $0.00 $0.00 

Plumbing Permits $1,480.00 $2,193.00 

Zoning Permits $20.00 $808.00 

FireSuppression Permits $0.00 $0.00 

FireAlarm Permits $64.00 $462.00 

Sprinkler Permits $91.00 $849.00 

Mechanical Permits $3,489.00 $5,722.00 

Food_Milk Licenses $651.50 $2,041.50 

Taxi Licenses $0.00 $20.00 

General Licenses $75.00 $395.00 

Net Revenue $53,469.50 $92,157.50 
 

 

9/12/19

41 of 161



   
 

End of Month Council Report 
 

 

   
 

  

Building Permit Detail 
 

 

  

  

  

     

 

New  Permits August 2019 Fiscal Year to Date 

Permit Type Permit For Permits 
Issued 

Estimated 
Construction Value 

Permits 
Issued 

Estimated 
Construction Value 

Building Permits Addition - Non-
Residential 

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 

Addition - Residential 0 $0.00 1 $15,000.00 

Alteration - Residential 8 $152,855.00 15 $716,816.00 

Alterations- Non 
Residential  

3 $233,200.00 5 $413,200.00 

Apartment 0 $0.00 5 $2,555,000.00 

Barn 0 $0.00 1 $25,000.00 

Building - Non-
Residential 

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 

Condo 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 

Deck 24 $120,615.00 32 $144,866.00 

Demolition 5 $26,900.00 9 $50,740.00 

Fence 7 $18,499.00 15 $68,494.35 

Footing/ Foundation 2 $12,200.00 7 $12,200.00 

Garage 3 $37,200.00 5 $72,200.00 

Manufactured Home 3 $215,000.00 4 $295,000.00 

New Home 4 $703,300.00 9 $1,413,300.00 

Other 0 $0.00 2 $27,000.00 

Pool - Above Ground 2 $34,110.00 4 $41,750.00 

Pool - In Ground 1 $57,350.00 3 $92,350.00 

Repair/Replace - Non-
Residential 

1 $30,000.00 1 $30,000.00 

Repair/Replace - 
Residential 

6 $51,450.00 9 $113,350.00 

Roofing 18 $165,646.00 27 $244,245.00 

Shed 1 $3,400.00 10 $30,835.00 

Siding 3 $12,400.00 4 $15,148.92 

Sign 3 $18,078.00 3 $18,078.00 

Windows 3 $50,112.00 4 $65,112.00 

Electrical Permits Electrical Underground  1 $1,000.00 1 $1,000.00 

Generator 0 $0.00 2 $18,600.00 

Low Voltage  1 $75,000.00 2 $77,000.00 

Meters 1 $58,000.00 3 $66,000.00 

Service 1 $40,000.00 5 $48,627.99 

Solar Electric System 1 $500.00 4 $37,605.00 

Temp Service 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 

 

9/12/19

42 of 161



   
 

End of Month Council Report 
 

 

   

Wiring 38 $171,475.00 64 $310,689.99 

FireAlarm 
Permits 

Fire Alarm Permit 1 $12,815.00 1 $12,815.00 

FireSuppression 
Permits 

Fixed Fire Suppression 
System 

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 

Mechanical 
Permits 

Air Conditioning 7 $93,869.00 15 $195,712.00 

Furnace/Boiler 22 $512,217.00 28 $538,202.00 

Gas Line 1 $1,000.00 6 $5,950.00 

Gas Piping  9 $18,695.00 13 $46,695.00 

Heating 11 $82,849.00 14 $90,849.00 

Hot Water Heater 0 $0.00 1 $1,232.00 

Mechanical 
Underground  

0 $0.00 0 $0.00 

Other 1 $15,000.00 1 $15,000.00 

Pressure Testing 1 $900.00 1 $900.00 

Propane Tank 12 $3,500.00 27 $11,750.00 

Sheet Metal Work 0 $0.00 0 $0.00 

Tank Installation 3 $6,500.00 10 $36,750.00 

Ventilation 1 $1,000.00 2 $7,466.00 

Plumbing 
Permits 

Plumbing 18 $163,800.00 32 $237,000.00 

Water Heater 3 $2,214.00 4 $5,103.00 

Sprinkler Permits Fire Sprinkler Systems 3 $47,335.00 3 $47,335.00 

 Total Permit Issued 233 $3,249,984.00 414 $8,271,967.25 
 

     

 

9/12/19

43 of 161



 
 

31 Wakefield Street * Rochester, NH 03867 * Telephone: (603)332-3508 * Fax: (603)330-0023 

 
 

 

City of Rochester, New Hampshire 
Department of Building, Zoning & Licensing Services 

 

 

 

 
ZONING MONTHLY REPORT - AUGUST 2019 

 

 

Postponed Cases: 

 

2019-13 Thomas Demchak applicant seeks a Variance from section 20.2(P)(1,2,&3) of the Zoning 

Ordinance to permit a commercial stable where none of the following requirements will be met: 

i. 1. The minimum lot size required shall be 5 acres. 

ii. 2. The side and rear setbacks for structures housing horses shall be 100 feet from any property 

line. 

iii. 3. Any storage areas for manure shall be set back at least 200 feet from any lot lines. 

Manure must be handled according to best management practices. 

Location: 72 Crown Point Rd, Rochester, NH 03867, MLB 0235-0050-0000 in the Agricultural 

Zone. 

2019-14 Thomas Demchak applicant seeks a Variance from section 23.2(A)(3)(E) of the Zoning Ordinance 

to permit the keeping of less than ten horses as an accessory use to a residence where the following 

requirements will not be met: 

i. The activity is not carried out as a business; 

ii. A lot in the AG District is at least 3 gross acres; 

iii. A lot in all other districts is at least 2 gross acres; 

iv. There is an additional ¼ acre of land beyond the minimum specified in iii. and iv, above, for each 

animal kept beyond the first one; 

v. No area or structure for the housing, stabling, storage of manure/animal waste, or feeding of 

animals shall be located within 100 feet of any property line; 

vi. Handling of manure/animal waste must follow best management practices and not be a nuisance 

for neighbors; 

vii. No animals shall be pastured within 25 feet of any side or rear property line except where the 

abutting property owner consents to a reduced setback. 

Location: 72 Crown Point Rd, Rochester, NH 03867, MLB 0235-0050-0000 in the Agricultural 

Zone. 

2019-15 Thomas Demchak applicant seeks a Variance from section 23(b)(E) of the Zoning 

Ordinance. The section does not exist and we have not heard from the representative regarding 

the clarification of this. 

Location: 72 Crown Point Rd, Rochester, NH 03867, MLB 0235-0050-0000 in the Agricultural 

Zone. 

 

Variances were postponed 

 

2019-19 Waste Management of NH applicant seeks a Special Exception according to table 18-D of the Zoning 

Ordinance to permit a contractors storage yard in the agricultural zone.   

Location: 214 Rochester Neck Rd, Rochester, NH 03867, MLB 0268-0002-0000 in the Agricultural Zone.  

 

Special Exception was approved 

 

9/12/19

44 of 161



 

 

New Cases: 

 

2019-20 Community Baptist Church applicant seeks a Variance from section 29.14(A)(1) of the Zoning Ordinance 

to permit the replacement of a sign that exceeds 6 square feet in area, in the residential 1 district.  

Location: 276 Eastern Ave, Rochester, NH 03867, MLB 0110-0014-0000 in the R1 Zone. 

 

Variance was approved 

 

2019-21 Phillip Stiles applicant seeks a Special Exception from section 22.3(c) of the Zoning Ordinance to permit a 

contractor’s storage yard in the HC Zone.  

Location:  89 Milton Rd St, Rochester, NH 03868, MLB 0210-0050-0000 in the HC Zone  

 

Special Exception was approved 

 

2019-22 Selden Hannah applicant seeks a Variance from table 19-A of the Zoning Ordinance to permit a two lot 

subdivision with one lot having minimum of 60’ of frontage where 100’ is required.  

Location: 71 Walnut St, Rochester, NH 03867, MLB 0122-0133-0000 in the R1 Zone.  

 

Variance application withdrawn 

9/12/19

45 of 161



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

46 of 161



1 

 

 
 

 
 

  City Clerk’s Office  

City Hall - First Floor 

31 Wakefield Street, Room 105 

ROCHESTER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03867-1917 

(603) 332-2130 - Fax (603) 509-1915 

Web Site: http://www.rochesternh.net 

 

City Clerk’s Report  

August 2019 
 

Vital Statistics 

 

As reported in the revenue chart below, the City Clerk’s staff issued 362 initial copies of 

vital records, and 185 subsequent copies of vital records in the month of August. The City Clerk’s staff 

issued 32 Marriage Licenses. 

 

The New Hampshire Division of Vital Records Administration generated the following 

report of statistics for the City of Rochester: 

 

 20 births were reported in Rochester during the month of Au gu s t , 6 of 

these children were born to Rochester residents. 

 34 resident deaths were reported in Rochester. 

 8 couples celebrated their wedding ceremonies in Rochester during the month 

of August. 

 

Revenue – Vital Records/Marriage Licenses 

 

 2018 2019 

 State City State City 

Initial/Subsequent 
copies: 

$2,520 $2,205 $3,821 $3,459 

Marriage Licenses: $1,591 $259      $1,376       $224 

Total: $4,111 $2,464 $5,197 $3,683 

 

 

Dog Licensing 

 

The City Clerk’s office licensed 265  dogs during the month of August.  There were $3,775 

in Civil Forfeiture fees collected.  

 

  

 

 

 

9/12/19

47 of 161

http://www.rochesternh.net/


2 

 

Customers Served during the month of August 2019 

 

                       
 

Elections 

 

 The City Clerk’s office is gearing up for the upcoming Municipal Election which will take place 

on Tuesday, November 5, 2019. All positions for City Council, School Board, Police Commission, 

Election Officials and Mayor will appear on the ballot. The filing period for the municipal election will 

open on Friday, September 6, 2019 and will remain open until Monday, September 23, 2019.  

 

 The City Clerk’s Office is still looking for election officials to assist in several of our city wards 

at polling locations on Tuesday, November 5th. If you are interested in assisting on election day, please 

contact the City Clerk’s office for more information.   

    

Voter registration summary by party as of August 31, 2019: 

 

Ward Democrats Republicans Undeclared Totals 

1 1,049 1,151 1,493 3,693 

2   967 1,094 1,672 3,733 

3 1,026 1,195 1,415 3,636 

4   852 791 1,695 3,338 

5   937 1,105 1,482 3,524 

6 1,005 817 1,294 3,116 

Totals: 5,836 6,153   9,051 21,040 

 

 

9/12/19

48 of 161



3 

 

Staff Development 

 

 Deputy City Clerk Cassie Givara and Clerk Typist II Susan Morris attended their third year of 

NHCTCA (New Hampshire City and Town Clerk’s Association) Training from August 12th through 

August 16th in Concord, NH. Both Cassie and Susan completed this final year of training and have now 

graduated to become certified city clerks in the State of New Hampshire.   

 

 

Respectfully submitted,   

 

Cassie Givara  

Deputy City Clerk 

9/12/19

49 of 161



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

50 of 161



ROCHESTER DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS MONTHLY REPORT 

AUGUST 2019 
 

In addition to the scheduled work performed, the Department of Public Works responded to 

approximately 173 requests for service in the month of August.  The Highway Division had 78 

requests that ranged from requests to clean storm drains, pothole repairs, traffic light 

maintenance, and roadside brush trimming.  The Utilities Division responded to 20 requests, 

which included sewer concerns, manhole cover repair, water connection inspection requests and 

daily digsafe mark outs.  Buildings and Grounds Department completed 75 service requests 

during the month of August. Service requests included plumbing repairs and electrical repairs.  

 

 
 

 

AUGUST SERVICE REQUESTS 

 

HIGHWAY & FLEET MAINTENANCE WORK COMPLETED: 

 Patched pot holes 

 Repaired 4 catch basins. 

 Cleaned 120 catch basins.  

 Painted crosswalks and arrows thought out the city.  

 Ditched Sheepboro Road 

 Ditched and paved swale at #9 First Street 

 Paved 1” over lay on Foch Street 

 Shim bad spots with hot top on Whitehall Road 

 Mill and paved sections of North Main Street and Chestnut Hil Road 

 Shim paved all of Jackson Street 

 Replaced 15” culvert on Jeremiah Lane 

 Ditched Ten Rod Road 

 Ditched Betts Road 

 Repaired wash out from heavy rain storms 

Building and 

Grounds, 75

Highway, 78

Utilites, 20

AUGUST SERVICE REQUESTS

Building and Grounds Highway Utilities

9/12/19

51 of 161



 Graded dirt roads 

 Worked on GIS on all street signs 

 Repaired and installed street signs throughout the city 

 Performed brush trimming though the city.  

 Replaced windshield in six wheel dump #8 

 Repairs made on the flail mower # 38 

 Replaced fuel pump on the one ton rack body of #105 

 Repaired strobe light wiring on the one ton dump #23 

 Replaced fuel pump on the six wheel dump # 17 

 Replaced fuel line on the six wheel dump #19 

 Replaced thermostat in pickup truck #44 

 Replaced brakes on pickup truck #2 

 Installed new batteries in the six wheel dump #6 

 Replaced all eight tires on the excavator # 29 

 Replaced the tires on the pickup truck # 53 

 New brakes and rotors on the pickup truck #33 

 Did preventative maintenance on ten of the city generators  

 Did lube, oil and filter service on 7 vehicles 

 Started to work on the state inspections 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Shim Pave Jackson Street                                                                      Patch Foch Street 

                                          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9/12/19

52 of 161



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                       Ditch Maintenance 

 

 

UTILITIES DIVISION WORK COMPLETED: 

Utilities division performed monthly maintenance on problematic sewer runs and the city’s 

sewer siphons.  In addition to daily utility mark outs, staff responded to seven sewer back-ups.     

The City received a State Grant for a water leak detection survey and will apply for another grant 

in the next cycle.  This line survey work was completed and we are waiting for the final report.  

A water service line was replaced at 21 Chestnut Street as a result of the detection survey.  Two 

new water service connections were inspected and meters were installed.  Quonset hut storage 

area on Route 202 was cleaned up.  Staff removed the overgrowth of brush and organized the 

pipe stock.  Sewer manhole adjustments were made on Route 125, Oak Street and Portland 

Street. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    Leak Detection                                                               

                                                                       Monthly Sewer Cleaning 

 

 

BUILDINGS AND GROUNDS DIVISION 

Buildings and Grounds Department completed 75 service requests during the month of August, 

including plumbing repairs, electrical repairs and painting.  The grounds staff continue to work 

on their weekly schedule of mowing, trimming and weeding of all City property, and they 

continued to keep up with watering the City’s barrels, hanging baskets and non-irrigated adopt a 

spots.  Staff oversaw the work for a contracted vendor to clean-up five abandoned camps on city 

property.  The maintenance technicians completed the restoration of the Police Department’s 

9/12/19

53 of 161



exterior concrete and the installation of the new decking on the bandstand at the Rochester 

Common.  Roofing repairs were completed at the Revenue Office and walkway repairs at the 

library are completed as well.  The LED lighting upgrades for the Community Center are 98% 

completed.  The Recreation Department A/C Project has been completed. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                  Exterior Concrete work PD                 Finished Results 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

              Installation of Decking on Bandstand at Rochester Common 

 

 

 

 

9/12/19

54 of 161



 

WASTEWATER TREATMENT DIVISION 

The Wastewater Treatment Division continues to work with the coalition of communities on 

related wastewater and Great Bay Estuary issues.  Staff also worked with local industries on 

various issues.  Members of this division attended state sponsored training classes.  The PLC 

Upgrade Project is moving forward. The contractor has successfully installed all of the hardware, 

completed programming and switched over 2 of the 4 local control systems.  Staff is working with 

our consultant to address DES required underground storage tank (UST) and aboveground storage 

tank (AST) upgrades.  There was a kick off meeting for the conceptual design of the Tara Estates 

Pump Station Upgrade Project.  The WWTP lab equipment was professionally calibrated.  The on-

site pre-bid meeting for River Street Pump Station Upgrade was held on August 14, 2019 and the 

bid opening for this project is scheduled for September 19, 2019.  Two pump stations received a 

surge during a lighting storm and damaged cable modems and EOS alarm monitoring/SCADA 

systems, equipment needed to be replaced.  These systems are now back up and running properly.  

Borings were done at Route 11 pump station as part of the pump station replacement project.  Staff 

has reviewed energy savings projects with Eversource reps and rebate checks to follow once 

projects are completed.  Staff performed preventative and corrective maintenance on equipment, 

machinery and instrumentation at the WWTP and pump station. All required testing for EPA and 

DES has been completed and submitted. Average effluent flow for the month was = 2.776 Million 

Gallons per Day (MGD). Percent of design flow = 55.2%. Percent of design flow for 2019 = 

65.4%. Precipitation for the month = 5.91”. Precipitation for 2019 = 33.62”.     
 

WATER TREATMENT DIVISION 

 

Treated water volume for the month of August was approximately 53.3 million gallons from the 

surface water treatment facility and 11.4 million gallons from the well, totaling 64.7 million 

gallons.  All water quality testing and monitoring was completed in accordance with NHDES 

requirements.  Second quarter disinfection byproduct annual averages remained within 

compliance levels and staff have been actively managing distribution water quality.  We are 

pleased to report that the City of Rochester again met and exceeded all State and Federal 

standards for drinking water.  Watershed inspections were conducted at the raw water 

transmission mains, Rochester Reservoir, Round Pond, the diversion dam, Tufts Pond, Berry 

Pond, and stream gage locations.  Instruments measured 4.0 inches of rain at the reservoir.  All 

reservoirs are filled to capacity.  Beaver activity was strong this month as they repeatedly 

repaired our maintenance efforts. The diversion pipeline has been fully open with an excess of 

4cfs continuing downstream except for a temporary closure due to heavy rain following NH 

DOT paving on Crown Point Road.  The raw water temperature has risen to 22 C and organic 

concentrations remained near 7 mg/L.  NHDES conducted a routine Sanitary Survey on August 

8th.  The report is pending.  Equipment and grounds maintenance was performed at the Water 

Treatment Facility, Cocheco Well, and tanks/stations.  Watershed access trail barriers were 

repaired at Tufts Pond and Berry Pond.  Station maintenance included hardware improvements to 

the telemetry systems, housekeeping, exterior tank maintenance and altitude valve inspections.  

Maintenance at the well included SCADA system improvements, equipment inspections, and 

blower intake cleaning.  Maintenance at the Water Treatment Facility included repairs to the 

sand filter indexing and backwash shoe systems, activated carbon pilot feed system, gate 

operator system, and independent instrument calibration.  The Low Lift Pump Station project is 

back on track this month and work is continuing with new schedule.  Progress includes chemical 

feed room improvements, installation of raw water pump 1, and control system programming.  

9/12/19

55 of 161



The Cyanotoxin Assessment Monitoring 3 schedule for Unregulated Contaminant Monitoring 

Rule 4 was completed this month. 

Staff is reviewing distribution system modeling for fall hydrant flushing and asset management 

practices.  The complete report is due next month.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Busy Beavers at Crown Point and Berry Pond 

 

 

 
 

Raw Water Pump 1 Installed 

 

 

 

9/12/19

56 of 161



ENGINEERING 
Project Updates for August 2019: 

 Asset Management:  The City continues to move forward in the process of acquiring the 

new Asset Management software; the selection process is anticipated to conclude in July 

2019, with an expected six to nine month implementation phase to follow. Efforts continue to 

improve the GIS data layers for City infrastructure, including the City’s stormwater network, 

which is required by the MS4 Permit.  The City is also working with SRPC to collect 

sidewalk inventory information, including a condition assessment; this effort is anticipated to 

resume in summer 2019.  In addition to inventory work, staff continue to populate more 

detailed information such as asset age, material, and condition on all of our assets and 

coordinate with our consultants to develop baseline information related to our water, sewer, 

and stormwater systems' “level of service”, “likelihood of failure”, “consequence of failure”, 

and “life cycle cost analysis”.  Our consultants are preparing for a presentation on the Asset 

Management Program to the Public Works & Buildings Committee in the coming months. 

 Colonial Pines Sewer Extension:  Final paving of Railroad Avenue has been postponed 

until Unitil completes some planned gas main installation work in 2019.  Phase 2 includes 

extension of the sewer from Birch Drive across Old Dover Road to Juniper Street, Towle 

Street, Vinewood Lane, Susan Lane, Hickory Lane, and a portion of Hillside Drive.  Phase 2 

construction continues with sewer installation beginning on Juniper Street in June.  Funding 

for future phases of this multi-phased sewer extension program has been approved in the 

FY20 CIP budget, and additional funding will be requested in the FY21 CIP budget.  Internal 

plumbing and private property surveys have been conducted throughout the entire Colonial 

Pines area (more than 85% have been completed). 

 Pavement Maintenance & Rehabilitation:  Sampson Road reclaim/pave was attempted by 

the paving contractor in April; however the paving will need to be re-addressed.  The City’s 

new paving contractor began the 2019 paving program in June.  Governors Rd. (Cross to 

Farmington Town Line) and Ten Road Rd. (Daytona to Four Rod Rd.) were paved in June; 

Charles St. (Columbus to Knight) and Walnut St. (Twombly to Strafford Square) were milled 

in June for paving in July; and the Municipal Parking Lot at Portland/Columbus, Main St. 

East Rochester (Cocheco to Autumn), and Colby St. will be paved in the coming months. 

 Sidewalk Rehabilitation:  Sidewalks were prepped for concrete on south side of Portland 

Street (between Olsen Way and Prospect St.) in June; concrete placement will begin in July.  

 Dewey Street Pedestrian Bridge:  A new City-owned utility pole and camera were installed 

at the end of Dewey Street in June. 

 Strafford Square Roundabout: Final design continues.  Bidding of the roundabout 

construction contract is now anticipated for 2020.  Prior to that contract, and in preparation 

for that construction, a utility infrastructure contract is anticipated to be bid for construction 

in late 2019.  Right-of-way and easement negotiations are being conducted in preparation for 

the construction contracts.  A public information meeting for this project was held in May. 

 Granite Ridge Development – Phase 2:  A scoping meeting has been scheduled in July 

between the City, Waterstone, and NHDOT to discuss the improvements necessary for Route 

11 as a result of this proposed development. 

 Water Treatment Plant Low Lift Pump Station Upgrade:  Construction is nearing 

completion. Substantial Completion of this project is anticipated in July 2019. 

 Water Treatment Plant Residuals Disposal:  An evaluation of alternatives has determined 

that the most cost effective method of disposal of residuals generated at the Surface Water 

Treatment Plant is an upgrade of the existing pipeline and addition of an attenuation tank.  

Funds for the implementation of this upgrade have either been approved in CIP budgets 

previously or will be requested in upcoming CIP budgets over the next few years. 

9/12/19

57 of 161



 Granite State Business Park Water Main Interconnection:  This project was advertised 

for bids in June 2019; construction is anticipated in 2019. 

 WWTF Biosolids Dewatering Facility:  This project was advertised for bids in late March 

2019.  Bids were received in May 2019.  Additional funding will be required to award 

construction of this project. 

 River Street Sewer Pump Station Upgrade:  100% design documents for this project were 

completed in June 2019 and are under final review. This project is anticipated to be 

advertised for bids in late July/early August 2019. Construction is anticipated to begin in 

2019 and be completed within one year. 

 Route 11 Sewer Pump Station Upgrade:  This upgrade project is currently in design.  This 

project is scheduled to be advertised for bids before the end of 2019, with construction 

occurring in 2020.   

 WWTF Upgrades (various projects):  There are several projects on-going at the WWTF: 

Soda Ash System Replacement, Aeration System Automation, Aeration Basin Sidewall 

Blower Tie-in (Iris Valve) and Mechanical Mixers, Standby Power Interconnection for 

Aeration Blowers, and Programmable Logic Controllers (PLC) Replacement.  All of these 

projects are on schedule to begin construction by summer or fall 2019. 

 Wastewater Interceptor Upgrades:  A Basis of Design Report has been received from the 

design consultant.  This report summarizes alternatives and recommends a sewer collection 

system master plan before proceeding with final design.  Funding for a Sewer System Master 

Plan was approved with the FY19 CIP Budget; consultant selection process will commence 

in the coming months. 

 NPDES Permits - Wastewater Treatment Facility & MS4 Permit (Stormwater): A new 

draft National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit for the Wastewater 

Treatment Facility (WWTF) has not yet been issued by USEPA Region 1. As far as the 

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) NPDES General Permit for stormwater, the 

2017 NH Small MS4 General Permit, issued by USEPA Region 1, became effective on July 

1, 2018; on September 28, 2018, the City submitted a Notice of Intent (NOI) to comply with 

this MS4 General Permit; and, on June 12, 2019, the City was granted authorization by 

USEPA Region 1 to discharge stormwater from Rochester’s MS4 under this permit.  USEPA 

Region 1 is also proposing an estuary-wide general  permit structure for nutrient loading, 

specifically nitrogen, in the Great Bay Estuary, which presumably would have additional 

requirements for nitrogen load reduction beyond the MS4 Permit requirements and the 

expected NPDES Permit requirements for Rochester’s WWTF.   

 Asset Management:  The City has selected a vendor for the new Asset Management 

software; six to nine months are expected for implementation with a “go live” date 

anticipated in early 2020. Efforts continue to improve the GIS data layers for City 

infrastructure, including the City’s stormwater network, which is required by the MS4 

Permit.  The City is also working with SRPC to collect sidewalk inventory information, 

including a condition assessment; this effort is anticipated to be completed in the next month 

or two.  In addition to inventory work, staff continue to populate more detailed information 

such as asset age, material, and condition on all of our assets and coordinate with our 

consultants to develop baseline information related to our water, sewer, and stormwater 

systems' “level of service”, “likelihood of failure”, “consequence of failure”, and “life cycle 

cost analysis”.  Our consultants are preparing for a presentation on the Asset Management 

Program to the Public Works & Buildings Committee in the coming months. 

 Colonial Pines Sewer Extension:  Final paving of Railroad Avenue has been postponed 

until Unitil completes some planned gas main installation work in 2019.  Phase 2 includes 

extension of the sewer from Birch Drive across Old Dover Road to Juniper Street, Towle 

9/12/19

58 of 161



Street, Vinewood Lane, Susan Lane, Hickory Lane, and a portion of Hillside Drive.  Phase 2 

construction now will include drainage improvements within the project area.  With the 

addition of drainage infrastructure work, construction of Phase 2 will continue through the 

2020 construction season.  Funding for a future phase of this multi-phased sewer extension 

program has been approved in the FY20 CIP budget. Additional funding for a final phase of 

sewer extension and drainage improvements in future phases will be requested in the FY21 

CIP budget. 

 Pavement Maintenance & Rehabilitation:  Sampson Road reclaim/pave was attempted by 

the paving contractor in April; however the paving will need to be re-addressed in the 

coming months.  The City’s 2019 paving rehabilitation program is essentially complete, with 

only final minor work remaining, including some striping and painting.  Paving maintenance 

work, including cracksealing, is being planned for completion in the coming months. 

 Sidewalk Rehabilitation:  Sidewalk rehabilitation work for 2019 is essentially complete 

with only minor restoration, including loaming and seeding, remaining.  

 Strafford Square Roundabout: Final design continues.  Bidding of the roundabout 

construction contract is now anticipated for late 2020.  Prior to that contract, and in 

preparation for that construction, a utility infrastructure contract is anticipated to be bid for 

construction in late 2019.  Right-of-way and easement negotiations are being completed in 

preparation for the construction contracts. 

 Granite Ridge Development – Phase 2:  A scoping meeting was held in July between the 

City, Waterstone, and NHDOT; as a result of this meeting, a revised traffic impact analysis 

study is anticipated to be completed in September 2019. 

 Water Treatment Plant Low Lift Pump Station Upgrade:  Construction is nearing 

completion. Substantial Completion of this project is anticipated in September 2019. 

 Granite State Business Park Water Main Interconnection:  Bids were received for the 

construction of this project in late July 2019; award of this construction project is anticipated 

in early September 2019.  Construction is anticipated to commence in the coming weeks. 

 Water Treatment Plant Residuals Disposal:  An evaluation of alternatives has determined 

that the most cost effective method of disposal of residuals generated at the Surface Water 

Treatment Plant is an upgrade of the existing pipeline and addition of an attenuation tank.  

Funds for the implementation of this upgrade have either been approved in CIP budgets 

previously or will be requested in upcoming CIP budgets over the next few years. 

 WWTF Biosolids Dewatering Facility & Carbon Storage and Feed Building:  Bids were 

received for this project in late May 2019.  Additional funding was approved and the project 

was awarded for construction of this project in late August 2019.  Construction is anticipated 

to commence in the coming weeks. 

 River Street Sewer Pump Station Upgrade:  This project was advertised for bids in late 

August 2019. Construction is anticipated to begin in 2019 and be completed within one year. 

 Route 11 Sewer Pump Station Upgrade:  This upgrade project is currently in design.  This 

project is scheduled to be advertised for bids before the end of 2019, with construction 

occurring in 2020.   

 WWTF Upgrades (various projects):  There are several projects on-going at the WWTF: 

Soda Ash System Replacement, Aeration System Automation, Aeration Basin Sidewall 

Blower Tie-in (Iris Valve) and Mechanical Mixers, Standby Power Interconnection for 

Aeration Blowers, and Programmable Logic Controllers (PLC) Replacement.  All of these 

projects are on schedule to begin construction before the end of calendar year 2019. 

 Wastewater Interceptor Upgrades:  A Basis of Design Report has been received from the 

design consultant.  This report summarizes alternatives and recommends a sewer collection 

9/12/19

59 of 161



system master plan before proceeding with final design.  Funding for a Sewer System Master 

Plan was approved with the FY19 CIP Budget; consultant selection process will commence 

in the coming months. 

 NPDES Permits - Wastewater Treatment Facility & MS4 Permit (Stormwater): A new 

draft National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit for the Wastewater 

Treatment Facility (WWTF) has not yet been issued by USEPA Region 1. As far as the 

Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (MS4) NPDES General Permit for stormwater, the 

2017 NH Small MS4 General Permit, issued by USEPA Region 1, became effective on July 

1, 2018; on September 28, 2018, the City submitted a Notice of Intent (NOI) to comply with 

this MS4 General Permit; and, on June 12, 2019, the City was granted authorization by 

USEPA Region 1 to discharge stormwater from Rochester’s MS4 under this permit.  The 

first annual report for the MS4 permit is due by September 30, 2019.  USEPA Region 1 is 

also proposing an estuary-wide general  permit structure for nutrient loading, specifically 

total nitrogen (TN), in the Great Bay Estuary, which presumably would have additional 

requirements for nitrogen load reduction beyond the MS4 Permit requirements and the 

expected NPDES Permit requirements for Rochester’s WWTF.  Regulators have stated that 

this TN General Permit will likely be a voluntary permit, and that a draft of the permit may 

be published as early as September or October 2019. 

 New DPW Facility:  The new DPW facility is in final design.  An RFQ to establish qualified 

bidders was advertised in August 2019.  Bid advertisement for construction of the facility is 

anticipated in late October. 

 

 

9/12/19

60 of 161



 

 

 

Economic & Community 
Development 

 

 

8/31/2019 MANAGEMENT REPORT 

 

 

Economic Development Report, Written by Jennifer Murphy Aubin 

Community Development Report, Written by Julian Long 
  

9/12/19

61 of 161



Economic Development Department TEAM reporting period of August 2019. 

1 

 

 

 

 

 

   

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
MICHAEL SCALA, DIRECTOR OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

BUSINESS RESOURCES 
Director Scala met with Miguel Moralez –Small Business Administration (SBA) and Warren Daniel Small 
Business Development Center (SBDC) to discuss ways to better utilize the resources of SBA and SBDC, better 
serve Rochester businesses.  

NEW BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS 
Deputy Director Sullivan met with Index Packaging President Mike Wiles to finalize the price for the land that 
will hold the new site of Index Packaging, pending Council approval in September. 

Scala, CM Cox, DCM Ambrose, Atty. O’Rourke, DD Sullivan all met with a Portsmouth business as part of 
ongoing discussions to bring them to Rochester 

SKYHAVEN 
As part of the Skyhaven Airport Marketing Committee, Director Scala met with the group to discuss marketing 
ideas and outreach strategies for the Skyhaven Airport Advisory Council.  

DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION 
Local business owners came to the office to discuss the downtown area and their ideas for redevelopment.  

Director Scala had an introductory meeting with the Main Street BOD and discussed future redevelopment 
goals and strategies for the downtown. 

 
JENN MARSH, ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SPECIALIST 

JOB LOAN ACTIVITY 
The Economic Development Department continues to work with Back Hill Brewery in the Gonic Mill as they 
move to close on their approved $35,000 JOB Loan.  Early October is the anticipated closing for the loan, 

9/12/19

62 of 161



Economic Development Department TEAM reporting period of August 2019. 

2 

 

with a potential grand opening in mid to late November.  The applicant is accessing a SBA Express loan to 
leverage the remaining project costs. 

BUSINESS INCENTIVES - RSA 79E APPLICATION 
Specialist Marsh continues to work with 22 Main Street and 73-77 South Main projects. At the August 20th 
meeting, the application for 22 South Main Street approved, with the next step of signing the 
covenant.  Principles from 73-77 South Main Street Project will attend the September 6th Council Meeting for 
a public hearing, first reading and attend the Historic District Commission meeting on September 11th. 

ROCHESTER LISTENS & DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT 
Specialist Marsh and Director Scala are reaching out to downtown property owners to listen to ideas for the 
downtown.  The Economic Development staff are ensuring that business owners understand incentives, how 
changes in zoning supports operations, along with City and regional loan opportunities for expansion and 
improvements.   

Specialist Marsh is working with downtown business owner and community leader, Todd Radict, of Skeletone 
Records and founder of Rochester Rise Up, and Stacey Purslow, of Rochester Listens, to organize an 
introductory meeting of the group, building relationships with other stakeholders to prioritize and work on 
Rochester revitalization and beautification projects. Over 45 people attended including fifteen business and 
property owners.  https://www.fosters.com/news/20190827/rochester-rise-up-eager-to-take-action 

The Rochester Rise Up initiative has a Facebook page over 350 supporters.  The tagline and call to action is 
“Beautification through Unification.” https://www.facebook.com/groups/2395403810548463/ 

 Save the Date: Rochester Listens, Monday, September 23th, 6 PM – 8 PM at the Rochester 
Performing Arts Center.   
Agenda: Start work on the five priority projects voted at the August meeting to beautify 
and improve the quality of life in the community. 

ROCHESTER MAIN STREET 
 Save the date: Porch Fest, Sunday, September 29 from 12 PM - 5 PM. 

BUSINESS INCENTIVES - RSA 79E APPLICATION 
The Economic Development Department received two 79E applications in June and July.  The first application 
is for 22 South Main Street, with the project moving through the July Community Development Committee, 
Finance Committee and Historic District Committee.  The second application is for 73-77 North Main Street, 
with plans to go before the August Community Development Committee, Finance Committee and Historic 
District Committee meetings.  

 

 

 

 

9/12/19

63 of 161

https://www.fosters.com/news/20190827/rochester-rise-up-eager-to-take-action
https://www.facebook.com/groups/2395403810548463/


Economic Development Department TEAM reporting period of August 2019. 

3 

 

JENNIFER MURPHY AUBIN, EXECUTIVE SECRETARY 

WAY FINDING 
Along with printing assistance from GIS Technician Camara, Executive Aubin designed visuals for the 

downtown signage project to show a sign example to scale and 
an implementation plan. 

GRANITE RIDGE DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT - 
RT.11 BUILD OUT ANALYSIS 
Director Scala, Executive Aubin, Specialist Marsh, and Chief 
Planner Creighton met with consultant Bruce Mayberry to update 
the RT.11 Build Out analysis and to explore if there is a market 
need for apartment potential within the area.  Consultant 
Mayberry completed the initial report and discussed with the 
rationale for the commercial and retail mix.  Attached is the final 
report. 

CENSUS DATE – COMPLETE COUNT 
COMMITTEE OUTREACH 
Executive Aubin, Great Bay at Rochester Joan Belladue, 
Government Channel Coordinator Plaia met with Nicole 
McKenzie, Census Regional Coordinator,  to discuss outreach 
efforts and the format of the Rochester Complete Count 
Committee.  Based on the first meeting, there might be an 
additional meeting for outreach. 

 Save the Date: Complete Count Committee Kick 
Off: Tuesday, September 17, 9 AM – 10 AM, 
Great Bay at Rochester, 5 Milton Rd, Rochester, NH 

FITNESS COURT 
Executive Aubin presented the Fitness Court to City Council, 
sharing the actual budget, which includes all associated costs 
including shipping from California and installation.  The initial 
Fitness Court presentation only included the equipment cost of 
$90,000.   

The next steps for the Fitness Court project is to explore 
additional sponsorships, engage community stakeholders for project inclusion in FY21 budget cycle. Goodwin 
Community Health invited Executive Aubin to a local community group run by Goodwin Health nurses to 
promote healthy lifestyles in September.  The leaders of the group and other medical practitioners are 
following the Fitness Court project closely as it aligns with their mission, beneficial to Rochester clients and a 
draw for visitors. 

7TH ANNUAL ARTS 
AWARDS 
“It’s exciting to see an 
example of public art going 
in to welcome people to 
Rochester,”  

Said Jennifer Murphy Aubin, 
executive secretary at the 
Rochester Economic 
Development Commission.  

“Our city is doing amazing 
work, with more than double 
the arts and culture activity 
than comparable cities 
nationwide.” 

“Get involved,” Wyatt, urged 
as he closed the ceremony,  

“Be a part of the change. 
Support the people who are 
making Rochester such a 
great place.” 

For more: 

https://www.fosters.com/new
s/20190813/rochester-
honors-its-arts-all-stars   

9/12/19

64 of 161

https://www.fosters.com/news/20190813/rochester-honors-its-arts-all-stars
https://www.fosters.com/news/20190813/rochester-honors-its-arts-all-stars
https://www.fosters.com/news/20190813/rochester-honors-its-arts-all-stars


Economic Development Department TEAM reporting period of August 2019. 

4 

 

GRAPHIC DESIGN & ROCHESTER RISE UP 
Executive Aubin found free online training to learn InDesign, an Adobe application to design high quality 
collaterals including economic development dashboards, newsletters, brochures and fact sheets.  Additionally, 
Aubin designed business cards for economic development staff to reflect the Choose Rochester branding.  She 
also updated business cards for Human Resources. 

Executive Aubin met with Rochester Rise Up founder, Todd Radict, to design a presentation packet for 
Rochester Listens, showing a diverse selection of beautification projects. 

50X50 ART INSTALLATION 
The Rochester Museum of 
Fine Arts participated in a 
2013 national campaign to 
promote rediscovering 
classic literature, in which 
artists from across the 
country updated classic 
covers to reflect today’s 
sensibilities.   

In August, the Executive 
Aubin collaborated with the 
museum because it achieved 
multiple economic 
development and quality of 
life goals: downtown 
beautification/revitalization 
and arts/education 

From an economic development revitalization perspective, these pop up galleries function an opportunity to 
feature underutilized, vacant properties and transforming them into mini galleries, which nationally is 
instrumental to spur interest and foot traffic to downtown.   

 “The City of Rochester, Economic Development Department is so pleased to partner with the Rochester 
Museum of Fine Arts, on the Recovering the Classics public art display.  This is an opportunity to draw attention 
to Rochester’s downtown spaces, helping to turn the page on vacancies.  

9/12/19

65 of 161



Economic Development Department TEAM reporting period of August 2019. 

5 

 

It is also a chance to increase foot 
traffic to the stalwart businesses and 
restaurants that are doing a spectacular 
job anchoring the downtown, while 
introducing new audiences to newly 
reimagined covers of classic literature 
that is still relevant today. What a 
wonderful chapter for Rochester!”  

- Jennifer Murphy Aubin, Public Art Project 
Liaison, Office of Economic Development, 
Rochester, NH. 

Report Attachment:  

 GRDD Apt. Potential, August 2019 

 

 

JULIAN LONG, CDBG COORDINATOR & GRANTS MANAGER 

COORDINATOR REPORT 
Prepared by the Community Development Coordinator 
September 2019 

CDBG PROGRAM  

FY 2020-2025 Consolidated Plan: The Community Development Coordinator has continued the consultation 
and drafting processes for the FY 2020-2025 Consolidated Plan. The plan will be due concurrent with the FY 
2020-2021 Annual Action Plan in May 2020. Within the last month, the Community Development Coordinator 
has conducted consultations with the Home for All Coalition (formerly the Greater Seacoast Coalition to End 
Homelessness) and the Rochester Economic Development Commission. 

FY 2021 Annual Action Plan: The Community Development Coordinator has started the public consultation 
process for the FY 21 Annual Action Plan. So far, the Community Development Coordinator has attended 
Rochester United Neighborhood ward meetings in all six wards. A public hearing for the FY 21 Action Plan, as 
well as a public hearing for the FY 20-25 Consolidated Plan, will be scheduled in the autumn. 

FY 2019 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report (CAPER): Per HUD rules and regulations, 
the CAPER must be submitted within 90 days of the end of the program year (or by September 30th). The 
draft CAPER is attached to this report as an electronic attachment. All performance goals were met or 
exceeded during FY 2019, with the exception of the postponed/cancelled Rochester Housing Authority 
Charles St. project. 

HUD Site Monitoring: Personnel from the Boston regional HUD office conducted on-site monitoring at the City’s 
offices on August 7th and August 8th. HUD reviewed the City’s financial policies and documentation, national 

 

Upper left, classic cover.  Upper right, 2019 cover. 
The Wizard of Oz shows a Minecraft themed 
landscape and characters, which have broad appeal 
to a new generation of readers.  

 

9/12/19

66 of 161



Economic Development Department TEAM reporting period of August 2019. 

6 

 

objective and income qualification documentation for CDBG subgrantees, and visited a Rochester residence 
assisted by the Community Action Partnership for Strafford County’s weatherization program. Areas of 
improvement were identified for low-moderate income area determination criteria, employee time tracking 
for subgrantees who use CDBG funds to pay for salaries, and expenditure documentation for quarterly 
reporting. All of these suggested improvements have been incorporated into revised grant applications, 
quarterly reporting forms, etc. In addition, HUD staff has requested additional documentation on eligibility 
determinations for the Community Center tennis court lights projects (already provided) and SOS Recovery 
Center (in progress). The official post-site review letter and corrective action items list has not yet been 
provided to the city by HUD. 

NH Community of Action for Lead Safety: The second statewide meeting was held in August. Attendees 
included the Community Development Coordinator, staff from Community Action Partnership of Strafford 
County, and staff from the Strafford County Public Health Network. Tentative planning included the possibility 
of using CDBG funds as matching funds for Rochester residents applying for state lead remediation funding. 
The state Division of Public Health Services’ 2018 Lead Exposure Data Brief for the Strafford County Region is 
attached to this report. 

HUD Webinar Trainings: The Community Development Coordinator attended a HUD webinar training on use 
of CDBG funds for code enforcement activities. 

Non-CDBG Grant Activities  

NH Recreational Trails Program Grant: The Community Development Coordinator has worked with the 
Riverwalk Committee to submit a formal Request for Project Review to the New Hampshire Division of 
Historical Resources for the proposed footbridge in Hanson Pines. 

Police Department: The Community Development Coordinator met with Police Department staff to discuss the 
possibility of obtaining grants or other funding to co-locate the city’s emergency operations center and the 
Police Department’s dispatch center in the third floor of the police station. 

VOCA Grant: The City of Rochester has received its finalized grant award letter for FY 20 funding for the 
victim-witness advocacy program. Due to the state operating under a continuing resolution, the City of 
Rochester is only approved to spend one-fourth of the total grant funds in the first quarter. 

Report Attachments 

 Draft FY 2019 Consolidated Annual Performance and Evaluation Report 
 2018 Lead Exposure Data Brief for the Strafford County Region, NH Division of Public Health Services 

 

9/12/19

67 of 161



 

 

 

 

 
Granite Ridge Development District 
Potential for Apartments as Secondary Use  

 
 
August 26, 2019 

 

 

 

Prepared for: 

 

Office of Economic Development  

City of Rochester 

33 Wakefield Street 

Rochester, New Hampshire 03867 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Prepared by:  

 
P. O. Box 723 

Yarmouth, ME 04096 

bmayber1@maine.rr.com

9/12/19

68 of 161



 

 

Table of Contents 
Executive Summary ....................................................................................................................................... 1 

A.  Objective .................................................................................................................................................. 2 

B.  Potential for Apartments as Secondary Use in GRDD .............................................................................. 3 

1.  Conditions for Apartment Development ............................................................................................. 3 

2.  Interpretation of Draft Provisions ........................................................................................................ 3 

C.  Current Rental Market Conditions ........................................................................................................... 7 

1.  Unemployment Rate ............................................................................................................................ 7 

2.  Rental Vacancy Rate and Market Rent Trend ...................................................................................... 7 

3.  Long Term Change in Renter Households ............................................................................................ 8 

D.  Balancing Jobs and Housing ................................................................................................................... 10 

1.  Jobs-Housing Ratio ............................................................................................................................. 10 

2.   Apartments Supportable by Retail Development ............................................................................. 10 

E.  Supportable Apartments in Primary Area of GRDD ............................................................................... 12 

1.  Original (2009) Estimates of Retail and Office Potential ................................................................... 12 

2.  Substitution of Apartments for Office Space Allocation .................................................................... 12 

3.  Apartment Development in Proportion to Retail Space .................................................................... 14 

F.  Assessed Valuation Comparison ............................................................................................................ 16 

1.  Apartments and Condos .................................................................................................................... 16 

2.  Office Valuation Comparison ............................................................................................................. 17 

G.  Development Impact of Apartments ..................................................................................................... 18 

1.  Population and School Enrollment..................................................................................................... 18 

2.  Vehicle Ownership and Trip Generation ............................................................................................ 19 

3.  Supporting Infrastructure .................................................................................................................. 20 

H.  Administrative Considerations .............................................................................................................. 21 

 

9/12/19

69 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 1  

Executive Summary 

The Rochester Office of Community and Economic Development retained BCM Planning, LLC to 

review the potential for apartment development within the tax increment financing district at 

Granite Ridge.    The context for this review is based on a set of draft zoning provisions that 

would enable and regulate the development of apartments as a secondary, or subordinate, use 

on backland portions of parcels hosting commercial development.    

In the original concept plans for the Granite Ridge Development District (GRDD), backland 

development was originally assumed to be two-story office space that would eventually 

account for about 50% of the total commercial space in the Primary Area of the District west of 

Route 11 (Farmington Road).   Those original assumptions, however, were not based on market 

demand but on the need to assign estimates of non-retail buildout principally for the purpose 

of traffic modeling.   The City’s Office of Economic Development now believes that major new 

office space development is unlikely at that scale.  The alternative of apartment development is 

under consideration as a means to more fully develop GRDD parcels to realize their tax 

increment potential.   

Estimates of potential apartment development in this study were based on two sets of 

assumptions:  (1) maximum potential apartment development within the principal parcels of 

the Primary Area of the GRDD, based on substitution of apartments for the 2009 office space 

allocations; and (2) the number of rental units that would be proportionately related to the 

housing demand generated by retail development of the parcels.    

The study estimates that creation of 3.5 to 4.0 rental units for each 10,000 square feet of retail 

space would be reasonably related to induced housing supply needs.   Based on this ratio, the 

development of 260 to 360 additional apartments would be commensurate with the rental 

housing demand associated with the number of jobs created by retail buildout within the 

selected parcels.   Based on the 2009 land capability analysis of these parcels, the Primary Area 

of the GRDD should be capable of accommodating an even higher number of apartments.  

The conditions contained in the draft zoning provisions convey an intent to keep apartment 

development opportunities within walkable distances of a diverse set of retail uses.   Locations 

consistent with the draft standards are found on the westerly side of NH Route 11, running 

from the Northgate Apartments at the south end to the Tractor Supply site at the north end.       

The proposed requirements may require additional flexibility to succeed.  Individual parcels 

that support considerable retail space may not have remaining developable land to 

accommodate many apartments on the same lot.   Consideration should be given to allowing 

apartment development within a set of adjacent parcels at levels that are proportionately 

related to their combined retail buildout.  Apartment options may include both freestanding 

buildings as well as mixed use structures with a commercial first floor and apartments in the 

upper stories.   

9/12/19

70 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 2  

A.  Objective 

The original 2009 development assumptions for the Granite Ridge Development District (GRDD) 

envisioned about 50% of the development potential of Primary Area parcels would be office 

space to the rear of retail uses.  Backland portions of the GRDD parcels were allocated to office 

space potential because they would not be as attractive for retail use due to limited visual 

exposure, and non-retail development assumptions were needed to model future buildout, 

related traffic demand, and highway improvements on NH Route 11.        

About 725,000 square feet (over 800,000 square feet in some scenarios) of new office space 

(assuming two story buildings) was originally estimated to be possible within the Primary GRDD 

parcels.   New retail development has been dominant since the formation of the GRDD, while 

new office development has been very limited in the GRDD and City-wide.      

The Economic Development Department is exploring alternative zoning regulations that would 

permit apartment development within the GRDD as a conditional use.   Development of 

apartments could help with infill of backland sites to enhance tax increment revenue available 

to fund public infrastructure improvements within the District.     Apartment development 

could also help sustain growth of the resident labor force to support the expansion of jobs in in 

the District and other parts of the City.    

The objective of this report is provide the City with information on the potential for apartments 

as a component of future development options within the GRDD.  The report is not intended to 

provide a recommended course of action, but to provide a basis and rationale for incorporation 

of apartments within the GRDD at a scale that would be proportionate to its retail growth. 

  

9/12/19

71 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 3  

B.  Potential for Apartments as Secondary Use in GRDD  

1.  Conditions for Apartment Development 

The Economic Development Department provided BCM Planning with a draft of proposed 

changes to the zoning ordinance to enable and regulate development of apartment dwellings 

as a conditional use within the GRDD.   The principal conditions set forth in the draft provisions 

include the following (some emphasis added in italics):  

 Multifamily apartments or 3+ unit structures would be authorized by conditional use 

permit but only as a secondary use associated with a commercial use.   

 The percentage that the aggregate square footage of the first floor of apartment 

dwellings is to the aggregate first floor of the commercial uses would be subject to the 

discretion of Planning Board.   

 Dwelling units not less than 500 square feet. 

 Served by public water and sewer systems 

 300’ setback from Route 11 

 100’ setback from any single family home or any vacant lot under 3 acres zoned 

residential 

 Access via frontage on a service road (such as Marketplace Boulevard); no frontage on 

an arterial or collector road 

 Shared parking permitted:  one space per bedroom 

 Harmonious integration within site. 

 Apartment development intended to be a walkable distance from commercial uses, with 

parking designed to include walkability.     

While not explicitly stated in the draft amendments, options for apartment development within 

the GRDD could include both freestanding apartment buildings and mixed use buildings with a 

commercial first floor and upper story residences. 

2.  Interpretation of Draft Provisions  

The proposed zoning changes reflect several policy goals that are important to interpreting 

where new apartments in the GRDD could reasonably meet the stated conditions.  First, the 

draft zoning provisions would require that the apartments be a secondary use within a given 

parcel, and would be subordinate to its retail uses. 1     

Second, the intent is to permit apartments in locations where occupants can walk to a variety of 

goods and services.  A sufficient concentration and diversity of uses is emerging within the 

                                                           
1 Options for apartment development could include mixed use buildings with commercial first floors and 
apartments above, as well as freestanding buildings in the backland portions of the parcel.   Freestanding 
apartment buildings might be required to have a greater setback distance from Route 11 than mixed use options.   

9/12/19

72 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 4  

Primary Area at The Ridge that is unlikely to be duplicated in the GRDD Secondary Area 

(easterly of Route 11).    

Third, the proposed zoning language indicates that the Planning Board may need some 

guidelines to estimate what quantity of apartments would be reasonably related to a given 

amount of retail space.    

Surveys have indicated that U. S. citizens view “walkable distance” to be within a quarter to a 
third of a mile.   These estimates are based on the distance a person would generally choose to 
walk rather than drive for a particular errand or trip.   However, this perception will vary by age, 
physical ability, and by the concentration and variety of uses at the destination.    
 
In conducting housing market studies, BCM Planning uses a half mile walking distance to 
represent a reasonable pedestrian convenience to downtown locations which offer a variety of 
mixed use destinations.     
 
Sites that offer walkable distances to grocery stores, restaurants, entertainment, shopping, 
banking, personal services, and park and recreation uses would tend to have an advantage in 
attracting younger workers to rental housing.     
 
The emerging development pattern in the GRDD indicates that the draft apartment 
development guidelines would be more easily satisfied on properties within the Primary Area of 
the GRDD (west of Route 11) centering on the Market Basket grocery store as the nucleus of 
new retail development in the corridor.  
 
The maps on the next pages show (1) the general location of the entire GRDD within Rochester; 
and (2) a detail of selected parcels within the Primary Area of the GRDD and their relationship 
to reasonable walking distances from the Market Basket store.   The store location is a central 
point within the developing retail corridor on the westerly side of NH Route 11.      
 
Using a half mile guideline for a reasonable walking distance to retail uses, the GRDD parcels on 
the westerly side of Route 11, running from the Tractor Supply site at the north end to the 
Northgate Apartments at the south end would best accommodate the desired apartment 
locations envisioned by the draft zoning provisions. 
 
 
 
 

9/12/19

73 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 5  

 

 

9/12/19

74 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 6  

Detail of Selected GRDD Parcels and Walking Distance to Market Basket 

 

9/12/19

75 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 7  

C.  Current Rental Market Conditions  

1.  Unemployment Rate 

The unemployment rate in Rochester and Strafford County, averaging about 2.5% in 2018, have 

for some time remained below what is considered “full employment” (4%).   Very low 

unemployment rates are indicative of high labor demand.   The ability to satisfy this demand is 

partly dependent on the capacity of the City and the region to accommodate a larger labor 

force.   The local and area unemployment rates rose during the Great Recession, but since 2014 

have remained below the full employment benchmark of 4%.   

Figure 1 

Recent and projected demographic shifts 

mean that an increasing share of the 

labor force will be entering retirement.   

There will be fewer younger households 

to replace them unless younger workers 

can be attracted to the region.  This is 

particularly challenging in Maine, New 

Hampshire, and Vermont which have the 

oldest populations in the nation. 

 

 

2.  Rental Vacancy Rate and Market Rent Trend 

Figure 2  

Low rental vacancy rates often parallel 

low unemployment rates due to the high 

demand for labor relative to a limited 

affordable housing supply.  

In its most recent June 2019 annual rent 

survey, the New Hampshire Housing 

Finance Authority (NHHFA) estimated a 

rental vacancy rate of less than one 

percent for two bedroom rental units in 

Strafford County.   

 

9/12/19

76 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 8  

Figure 3 

Market rents have increased 

significantly since 2015, 

providing increased support 

for the development of 

market rate rental housing, 

and for affordable workforce 

housing. 

 

 

 

 

 

3.  Long Term Change in Renter Households 

Table 1 

During the 30-year period 1980 to 2010, 

Rochester registered an increase of nearly 

1,600 renter households, or a net change 

of about 40 per year. 2   

During the 2000-2010 period, the pace of 

renter household growth was much 

slower than in the prior decades.     

The current rental vacancy rate in the area is indicative of pent up demand for rental housing, 

as are the rapid absorption rates of recently developed market rate and workforce rental 

housing developments created through the Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) program 

administered through the NHHFA.    

Based on an analysis of Rochester property tax assessment data, Figure 4 shows the historic 

pattern of multifamily housing development based on “year built” associated with the 

properties.    The history indicates that multifamily development is somewhat cyclical, with high 

production years followed by longer periods of lower activity as the new inventory is absorbed.    

  

                                                           
2 The decennial Census is the only source of 100% counts of housing units and households.  Interim estimates based on small 
samples are available from the American Community Survey (ACS), but the ACS data are not considered accurate for whole-
number estimates.  They are best used to estimate proportional data such as percent distributions or ratios.   

For Period Avg Per Year

1980-1990 746 75

1990-2000 621 62

2000-2010 228 23

1980-2010 1,595 40

Net Change in Rochester 

Renter HouseholdsCensus Period 

(100% Count)

9/12/19

77 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 9  

Figure 4 

Historically, multifamily 

development in 

Rochester has been 

intermittent with 

periodic spikes in activity 

in response to market 

conditions and 

opportunities.   It has not 

taken place at a steady 

pace.      

 

 

 

 

Developers are likely to seek sites that can support at least 24 units as economically viable.   

They will often prefer locations that offer the potential for larger scale development that can be 

phased.   This allows the pace of actual construction to respond to changes in demand and to 

adjust to the scale of new rental projects being created within the same market area.    

 

 

 

 

 

  

9/12/19

78 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 10  

D.  Balancing Jobs and Housing  

1.  Jobs-Housing Ratio 

An affordable housing supply is needed to support and recruit an adequate labor supply that 

will sustain business expansion.   It is also in the interest of businesses to locate in places where 

employees can live within a reasonable distance to work.  Proximity of employees to the 

workplace has been found to reduce absenteeism and employee turnover, and related 

employee training costs.     

Table 2 

The general 

relationship between 

the number of jobs 

located in the City and 

its region relative to 

the number of 

resident households is 

illustrated in Table 2.     

On a regional basis 

(Strafford County) 

there is about one 

household per job.   

We will assume that 

one average job (at 

the average wage) is capable of supporting one average household.  In Rochester, 35% of all 

households are renters; within the Tri-City area (Dover-Rochester-Somersworth) 42% of 

households are renters.   We can reasonably expect that 35% to 40% of new households will 

need rental housing.    

2.   Apartments Supportable by Retail Development 

From prior studies in Rochester, we have estimated that there is an average of about 600 

square feet of finished building area per employee within the retail, food and accommodation 

(lodging) sectors.   (For the purposes of this study, we will refer to this grouping of uses as the 

retail sector.)         

In Table 3, we estimate the number of jobs generated by various scales of retail development 

by amount of floor area.    Note that retail jobs are not “average jobs” with respect to the 

wages generated.   Since retail wages are relatively low, it takes the income from 1.7 retail jobs 

to equal the wage generation, or income equivalent, of one average job in Rochester.   

Demographic Factor Rochester

Dover-

Rochester-

Somersworth

Strafford Co

Jobs (All Sectors) 2017 12,108 35,620 48,165

    Jobs in Retail, Lodging, Food 2017 * 4,146 9,109 11,185

         Share of Total Jobs 34% 26% 23%

Households 2017 12,837 30,936 48,543

    Homeowners 8,308 18,064 31,845

    Renters 4,529 12,872 16,698

       Renters % of Households 35% 42% 34%

Jobs/Households Ratio 0.94 1.15 0.99

Households/Job Ratio 1.06 0.87 1.01

* Retail sector defined here to include retail, restaurant, food and accommodation 

Jobs - Housing Relationship - City and Region 2017

9/12/19

79 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 11  

Table 3 

   

With 35% to 40% of households oriented toward rental tenure, income from retail jobs may 

generate a need for about 3.5 to 4.0 rental units for every 10,000 square feet of commercial 

space 

Developers seldom create new rental developments of less than 24 units.   Therefore, at least 

60,000 square feet of retail space or mixed commercial uses would be needed to support 

demand for a minimum scale rental development.   

None of these estimates presume that the rental housing demands generated by retail 

development can be met on the same site, nor that those who live in such housing will also 

work in the same locations as their job.    

Housing demand and supply balances occur across a large region.   The exercise above is to 

estimate the level of apartment development that may be reasonably associated with various 

levels of retail expansion in Rochester.     

  

Square Feet Retail, Lodging, 

Food Sectors

Rochester Retail 

Jobs @ 600 Sq. Ft. 

Per Employee (1)

Income-Equivalent 

Average Wage Jobs 

(2)

50,000 83 49 17 20

100,000 167 99 35 40

150,000 250 148 52 59

200,000 333 198 69 79

250,000 417 247 86 99

300,000 500 297 104 119

350,000 583 346 121 138

400,000 667 396 139 158

450,000 750 445 156 178

500,000 833 495 173 198

(1) Ratio derived from 2018 Rochester Impact Fee Update by BCM Planning, LLC.

(2) Average wages 2017 Rochester:  retail, accommodation and food = $26,852   (NH Employment Security)

      Average wage for all sectors = $45,646.  Income from 1.7 retail jobs = income from one average job.

      In Strafford County there is an average of one household per job

(3) In Rochester, 35% of households are renters.  Average for Tri-City area (Dover-Rochester-Somersworth) is 42%

Supportable Rental Units 

(@ 35% - 40%)

Estimated Rental Housing Needs Associated with Retail Development

9/12/19

80 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 12  

E.  Supportable Apartments in Primary Area of GRDD 

1.  Original (2009) Estimates of Retail and Office Potential 

In an early series of projections of TIF buildout by BCM Planning (September 2006), it was 

projected that about 10% of the development potential within the Primary Area of the GRDD 

would be composed in office uses.   This projection was estimated based on historical growth of 

the City over a long term period, with shares of new commercial growth allocated to the GRDD 

primary and secondary areas.  

In 2009, CLD Engineers prepared a detailed land capability analysis and plan for a study area 

that now comprises the Primary Area of the GRDD Tax Increment Financing District.   This 

analysis included wetland delineations of the selected parcels, and specific estimates of new 

retail and office space supportable on the study area parcels.   

Retail and lodging uses were projected as the front line uses for most parcels, with office space 

opportunities allocated to the developable portions of the lots that lie behind the assumed 

retail portions of the site.   In estimating supportable floor area, the study assumed that retail 

uses would be of a single story, and that office space development would be in two-story 

buildings. 

After making initial assignments of developable land and supportable floor area to each parcel, 

the allocations were modified after consultation with the City to arrive at the final 2009 

development assumptions.   The modified estimates assigned about half of the new commercial 

development in the study area to office space.    

The allocations of office space were not based on any particular market demand analysis.  

Rather, there was a need to make an estimate non-retail development potential as part of the 

future buildout assumptions as an input to traffic demand modeling.   That modeling became 

the basis for projecting NH Route 11 improvement and signalization needs, and for a 

subsequent memorandum of understanding between the City and the NH Department of 

Transportation to define required highway improvement needs in the GRDD corridor.      

2.  Substitution of Apartments for Office Space Allocation  

In this section we estimate the number of apartments that would be possible in the Primary 

Area of the GRDD by substituting apartment floor area equivalents of the 2009 office space 

assignments.      

The office space assignments from the 2009 CLD study were made assuming two stories of 

construction.    Apartment development on the same footprints could include two story or 

three story construction (three story is more common in the current market unless construction 

occurs in row or townhouse structures).      

9/12/19

81 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 13  

Table 4 illustrates data for Rochester apartment developments of 24 or more units by type 

based on property tax data analysis by BCM Planning.   Average apartment buildings have about 

1,000 to 1,200 square feet of finished floor area per dwelling unit.  

Table 4 

For new apartment 

construction, we will 

assume about 1,200 

square feet of finished 

space per unit.   (This 

includes the living area 

within the units and 

finished common areas 

within the structures).     

Commercial uses outside the downtown area of Rochester are required to have three parking 

spaces per 1,000 square feet (1 space for 333 square feet).    The standard requirement for 

apartments is two spaces per unit.    For a dwelling unit with 800 square feet of living area, 

parking would be 1 space for 400 square feet.   Total living area per unit in multifamily 

structures including common areas is about 1,200 square feet.  This would indicate that parking 

space needs would average 1 space per 600 square feet).   The impervious areas needed for 

parking and circulation for apartment uses should be no greater than those assumed for a 

comparable amount of office space. 

Depending on whether 2-story or 3-story construction is assumed, the substitution of 

apartment space for the office space allocations shown for the Primary Area of the GRDD would 

represent a maximum potential for 550 to 790 multifamily dwelling units.   (See Table 5.) 

It is not likely that apartments could be developed to their theoretical maximum.  In the 2009 

study, the development of office space on some lots noted that development of some parcels 

would be difficult due to the presence of wetlands, a need for some filling and mitigation, and 

to strategically connect developable upland areas with access drives.   

The vast majority of the original office space allocation) was assigned to lot 208-1, where 

550,000 square feet of office space was estimated to be possible. 3     The 2009 wetland 

delineation noted that development of the rear portion of the site would require construction 

of serpentine driveways to connect upland pockets of developable land area.    

Part of the development capability assigned the lot now developed as Phase 1 of The Ridge 

(216-11) was estimated to support 140,000 square feet of office space to the rear of the lot.  

Subsequently, a conservation easement4 was granted to the City that precludes backland 

                                                           
3 Lot 208-1-2, the location of Tractor Supply, appears to have been part of the original lot evaluated.    
4 The conservation easement encumbers 46.2 acres, comprising 31.1 acres of upland and 15.1 acres of wetland. 

Apartment Development Excluding Rehab
Multifamily 

Units

Finished 

Area of 

Buildings

Avg  Area 

Per Unit

Affordable Senior Apartments 290 230,240 794

Affordable Family Apartments 153 156,532 1,023

Non-Subsidized Apartments 24 Units or More 1,027 1,004,644 978

  Subtotal Built 2000 Or Later 472 598,084 1,267

Rochester Apartment Developments With 24 Units+  (2018) 

9/12/19

82 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 14  

development on this site, but permits passive public recreation uses.    Therefore, no on-site 

backland development potential for this lot is shown in Table 5.       However, the proportionate 

apartment demand generated by the retail buildout of the parcel has been computed.     

 
Table 5

 

3.  Apartment Development in Proportion to Retail Space 

Our view is that the maximum apartment development potential estimated from substituting 

apartments for the original office space assignments produces a number that would be 

disproportionate with respect to the scale of retail development in the Primary Area of the 

GRDD.    

If apartment development were instead proportionate to the amount of developed retail space, 

then the number of new apartments should be in the range of 330 to 380 units within the 

Primary Area of the GRDD west of Route 11.   (See Table 5, right hand columns.)  

Lot(s)
Gross 

Acres

Developable 

Area 

Excluding 

Roads, 

Setbacks, 

Buffers

Retail 

Development 

Potential 

(One-Story)

Constructed 

or Approved 

Since 

Original 

Study

Remainder 

Estimated 

Retail 

Potential

2009 

Estimated 

Office 

Development 

Potential as 2-

story (See 

notes)

3-Story 

Apartment Sq. 

Ft. Equivalent 

of Office 

Allowance

2-Story 

Apartment 

Buildings

3-Story 

Apartment 

Buildings

208-1 and 208-1-2 82.5 45.0 75,000 18,875 56,125 550,000 825,000 458 688 26 30

208-2 32.0 15.0 165,000 165,000 45,000 67,500 38 56 58 66

208-4 1.2 0.9 10,000 10,000 4 4

208-5 0.8 0.6 7,000 7,000 2 3

208-6 1.1 0.8 2,000 2,000 1 1

208-8   (Note 2) 71.0 10.0 100,000 100,000  See Note 2  See Note 2 35 40

216-1, 216-2, 216-3, 

221-163   (Note 3)
23.7 17.6 40,000 10,950 29,050 50 50 14 16

216-4 17.1 13.0 65,000 65,000 23 26

216-6, 216-7, 216-8, 

216-9
39.5 24.4 124,000 194,500 0 68 78

216-11  (Note 4) 85.0 30.0 220,000 295,000 0 See Note 4 See Note 4 103 118

Total  353.9 157 808,000 519,325 434,175 595,000 892,500 546 794 334 382

(4) The 2009 study anticipated 140,000 square feet of office space on the back portion of the lot.  However, backland development is now precluded by a conservation easement.

Estimated Number of 

Apartments @ 1,200 SF 

Finished Area Per Unit 

(Note 1)

Estimated Apartment Development Potential in Primary GRDD Parcels

(3) These parcels were combined in the final 2009 estimates of development potential.   The 2009 study identified potential for 50 units at this location.  

Estimated Number of 

Apartments 

Proportionate to Retail 

Development

(1)  Based on average living area per unit for multifamily buildings constructed in Rochester 2000 - 2017 (property assessment records).  

(2) The final 2009 office allocation of 130,000 square feet to this parcel was based on "balancing the uses in the District".  The rear portion of the lot was considered inaccessible due to the 

need for long wetland crossings.  We have substituted the 100,000 square foot retail alternative from the 2009 study since the proposed zoning changes would not permit apartments 

within 300' of Route 11.

9/12/19

83 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 15  

The proportionate number of apartments would be higher if the pre-existing Wal-Mart 

Supercenter were included in the estimates.  The range of proportionate apartment 

construction, if related to the scale of major retail development within the Primary Area of the 

GRDD (existing and anticipated) would be as high as 470 units: 

             Proportionate         Apts. 

Primary Area of GRDD    Retail SF      Apartments    Cumulative 

Wal-Mart Super Center (predates TIF) 225,000    90    90 

Other Retail Developed / In Process    519,000  208  298 

Remaining Projected Retail   434,000  174  472 

Total                           1,178,000  472 

 

There are 115 apartments at Northgate, the only existing apartment complex within the 

Primary Area of the GRDD.  Northgate Apartments, a 3-story complex constructed in 1971, 

predates the TIF designation of the area.      If these units were deducted from the 

proportionate apartment unit calculations, then a proportionate long term goal for new 

apartment development in the Primary Area would be in the range of 265 to 360 multifamily 

units.    

 

  

9/12/19

84 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 16  

F.  Assessed Valuation Comparison 

1.  Apartments and Condos 

The average taxable valuation of multifamily apartments in Rochester built 2000 or later, on 

sites with 24 or more units, is about $92,000 per unit, or $72 per square foot based on total 

finished area within the buildings.   (See Table 6.) 

“Apartment” development might also occur as condominiums, which would generate higher 

values per unit and per square foot.   Smaller condos in Rochester with living area under 1,000 

square feet have an average valuation of about $72,000 or $86 per square foot.  Larger condos 

with 1,000 to 1,500 square feet have average values of $114,000 per unit or $99 per square 

foot.  (See Table 7.)     Larger condo units generally take the form of attached or 

townhouse/row style units.    This style of construction, however, would produce fewer units 

within available developable sites.   

Table 6 

 

 

Table 7 

 

 

Apartment Development Excluding Rehab
Multifamily 

Units

Finished 

Area of 

Buildings

2018 

Assessed 

Valuation 

Per Unit

2018 

Assessed 

Valuation 

Per Sq. Ft.

Affordable Senior Apartments 290 230,240 $59,394 $75

Affordable Family Apartments 153 156,532 $62,407 $61

Non-Subsidized Apartments 24 Units or More 1,027 1,004,644 $65,696 $67

  Subtotal Built 2000 Or Later 472 598,084 $91,847 $72

Rochester Apartment Developments With 24 Units+  (2018) 

Per Unit Per Sq. Ft.

Market Rate Apartments 24 Units + $65,700 $67 978 0.22

        Built 2000 or Later $91,847 $72 1,267 0.28

Condominiums

    Under 1,000 Sq. Ft. $71,900 $86 839 0.20

        Built 2000 or Later               insufficient number of units to tabulate

    1,000 to 1,500 Sq. Ft. $114,000 $99 1,148 0.17

       Built 2000 or Later $132,000 $113 1,171 0.17

Avg Living 

Area Per Unit

Enrollment  

Per Unit

Assessed Valuation

Average Valuation - Apartments and Condos - Rochester 2018

Multifamily Development

9/12/19

85 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 17  

2.  Office Valuation Comparison 

The average taxable valuation of offices in Rochester is about $111 per square foot.   This varies 

by number of stories and age of construction.   One story office space carries a higher valuation 

per square foot than buildings with two or more stories.     

There has been very little recent construction of office space with two or more stories in 

Rochester.   Office developments with two or more stories developed in 2010 or later has an 

average taxable valuation of $106 per square foot (2018 values).   The average for offices with 

two or more stories built 1990 or later is $120 per square foot.  

Table 8 

 

For comparison of long term valuation potential, we will assume that two story offices would 

have a taxable value averaging $120 per square foot (based on 2018 assessed valuation data). 

 Comparison of Taxable Value on Building Footprint of 50,000 Square Feet 

 Office space – 2 Story    

 Footprint area 50,000 square feet @ 2 story =100,000 square feet @ $120 = $12.0 million   

 Apartments - 3 Story  

 Footprint area 50,000 square feet @ 3 story= 150,000 square feet @ $72 = $10.8 million        

 Multifamily Condos < 1000 sq. ft.  - 3 Story 

 Footprint area 50,000 square feet @ 3 story= 150,000 square feet @ $86 = $12.9 million        

A three story apartment complex would generate about 90% of the total taxable valuation that 

would be produced by two story office development on the same footprint.     If the multifamily 

units were in condo ownership, the residential valuation of the units would be about 7.5% 

higher than the office scenario.      

The multifamily development scenarios, if built in three story buildings, would tend to generate 

roughly comparable levels of taxable valuation (and tax increments) as two story office space 

on the same footprint area.  

  

Period Built
Assessed 

Valuation

Square Feet 

Finished

Valuation Per 

Square Foot

1980 or Later $9,458,500 78,515 $120

1990 or Later $8,749,200 72,879 $120

2010 or Later $2,151,100 20,276 $106

2018 Assessed Valuation Rochester Two or More Story 

Office Buildings

9/12/19

86 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 18  

G.  Development Impact of Apartments 

1.  Population and School Enrollment 

In Table 9 the demographic impacts and trip generation potential of multifamily development is 

estimated based on average values per unit.    Impacts are shown for 50 to 400 units, 

representing short term vs. long term buildout scenarios.       

While population would be added to the City’s service base with the creation of new 

apartments, the housing would enable a larger labor force to live in the City near sources of 

local employment.     

Based on the 2018 impact fee study for the City prepared by BCM Planning, LLC the average 

apartment in Rochester generates 0.275 public school pupils.   The local schools are operating 

at levels below their maximum enrollment capacity.  While operating expenses for education 

may increase, new additions to school buildings will probably not be required to serve the 

range of enrollment generation illustrated here.   

Table 9 

 

50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400

Population (1)

Low 2.10 105 210 315 420 525 630 735 840

High 2.28 114 228 342 456 570 684 798 912

School Enrollment (2)

Elementary & Middle 0.196 10 20 29 39 49 59 69 78

High School 0.079 4 8 12 16 20 24 28 32

Total Public Schools 0.275 14 28 41 55 69 83 97 110

Vehicle Ownership (3)

Based on Average Rental Unit 1.29 65 129 194 258 323 387 452 516

Trip Generation (Trip Ends) (4)

   Average Weekday 6.72 336 672 1,008 1,344 1,680 2,016 2,352 2,688

   AM Peak (7-9 AM) 0.51 26 51 77 102 128 153 179 204

   PM Peak (4-6 PM) 0.67 34 67 101 134 168 201 235 268

(1) Persons per household for 5+ unit rentals (low) and average renter household size (high) - 2017 ACS sample, Rochester

(2) Average enrollment in multifamily units, Rochester 2018 (from impact fee study by BCM Planning, LLC)

(3) Vehicles per household estimate for renter occupied housing from 2017 ACS Rochester sample

(4) ITE, Trip Generation, 7th edition, rates for apartments (use 220)

Estimated Residential Service Demand Factors - Apartment Development

Number of Apartments
Service Demand Measure

Avg Per 

Unit

9/12/19

87 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 19  

2.  Vehicle Ownership and Trip Generation 

The average rental unit in Rochester is associated with an average of 1.29 vehicles.   While this 

creates a new source of traffic demand on the road network, the City collects significant annual 

revenues from vehicle registrations.   

Trip generation impacts are shown for average daily trips and for AM and PM peak trips.  Traffic 

demand modeling from the 2009 CLD study was used to project signalization and other 

improvements needed along Farmington Road (State Route 11) to accommodate full buildout 

within the study area for retail and for very large complement of future office space.       

In Table 10, the estimated trip generation rates per dwelling unit for multifamily housing 

(apartments) are converted to estimated trips per thousand square feet for comparison to the 

rates for larger-scale office configurations.     

Table 10 

 

When compared per thousand square feet of floor area, the trip generation rates for 

apartments are lower than those of typical office space, particularly at peak hours.  Peak hour 

traffic is significant to the determination of intersection capacity and signalization needs.    

Since a very large complement of office space was part of the 2009 buildout assumptions and 

related traffic modeling for the Primary Area of the GRDD, the original modeling may have 

already accounted for a traffic volume and peak trip generation that is equal to or greater than 

that of comparable floor areas that are developed as apartments.   

1,200 1,100 1,000 900

Estimated Trip Ends 

   Average Weekday 6.72 5.60 6.11 6.72 7.47

   AM Peak (7-9 AM) 0.51 0.43 0.46 0.51 0.57

   PM Peak (4-6 PM) 0.67 0.56 0.61 0.67 0.74

Corporate 

Headquarters

Research & 

Development 

Center

General 

Office 

Building

Office Park

Estimated Trip Ends Per 1000 Sq. Ft.

   Average Weekday 7.98 8.11 11.01 11.42

   AM Peak Hour 1.49 1.24 1.55 1.74

   PM Peak Hour 1.40 1.08 1.49 1.50

APARTMENT Trip Generation 

Estimates  (1)

Comparison of Apartment vs. Office Trip Generation Per 1000 Square Feet

(1) Residential trip generation rates are computed per dwelling unit; office and commercial trip rates are computed per 1000 square 

feet.  The ITE trip rates for multifamily units have been converted to rates per 1,000 square foot for comparison based on a range of 

average finished space per dwelling.  Trip rates were derived from Trip Generatio, 7th Edition, Institute of Transportation Engineers 

(ITE).

OFFICE Trip Generation 

Estimates  (1)

Assumed Average Finished Area Per Apartment

Type of Office Space

ITE Rate 

Per 

Dwelling
Estimate Trips Per 1000 Square Feet

9/12/19

88 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 20  

3.  Supporting Infrastructure  

The apartment development concept that is envisioned by the draft zoning amendments for 

the GRDD would provide for the integration of apartment uses and retail uses within the 

District, or within individual parcels.    

Walkability is a central part of that integration, indicating a need to consider inclusion of 

supportive residential infrastructure improvements (whether public or private) such as: 

 Sidewalks along the internal public or private roads and access drives that 

link residential sites to the commercial core area; 

 Street and/or sidewalk lighting along these sidewalks; 

 Winter maintenance of the walkways for year round pedestrian use; 

 Hiking paths / fitness circuits / cross country ski trails that connect open 

space or recreation opportunities in parcel backlands. 

The capacity to develop apartments within the indicated parcels of the GRDD presumes that 

public water and sewer infrastructure will have adequate capacity to support two to three story 

apartment construction on backland elevations (or that this capacity can be provided during the 

course of development).    Evaluations should be made by the Public Works Department to 

assure that adequate water pressure and fire flows can be maintained at these locations.  

The Rochester Planning Board has recently adopted a schedule of impact fees that will go into 

effect in January 2020.    These fees will enable the City to assess new development for its 

proportionate demand on selected capital facilities.  The impact fees for residential 

development include assessments for public schools, police, fire and municipal office facilities.    

For apartment buildings with average living space per dwelling, 250 apartments would generate 

about one million dollars in fee revenue to offset municipal capital costs.       

In addition, the Planning Board may require other funds or improvements as exactions for off-

site improvements to water, sewer, drainage and roads where they are necessitated by specific 

developments.     Within the GRDD, however, certain public improvements may be funded by 

incremental tax revenues generated within the TIF.  

It may be possible for the City to leverage affordable rental housing within the GRDD through 

the financing of supporting infrastructure improvements using tax increment revenues.  The 

reduction of developer front end costs for water, sewer, and roads could be used to negotiate 

development agreements that incorporate affordable workforce rental housing within the 

GRDD, including Low Income Housing Tax Credit (LIHTC) apartments through the NH Housing 

Finance Authority.   Affordable workforce rental housing would expand the capacity of the 

GRDD to support the labor supply needed to staff its retail development, and fulfill a recognized 

public purpose.    

9/12/19

89 of 161



 Potential for Apartments in the GRDD  

 Page 21  

H.  Administrative Considerations 
 

In addition to changes in the zoning ordinance, the incorporation of apartments into the GRDD 

may require the amendment of the Tax Increment Development Plan5 for the District if the City 

determines that allowing apartments would be inconsistent with the 2014 adopted Plan.    If a 

revised TIF plan is deemed necessary, it would need to be adopted by the City Council.    

The GRDD is also designated as an Economic Revitalization Zone (ERZ) by the NH Division of 

Economic Development.     The City should confirm that eligibility of the district as an ERZ will 

not be affected by the incorporation of apartments as a conditional use within the District.  

The Rochester Planning Department has advised that the memorandum of understanding 

(MOU) between the City and the NH Department of Transportation with respect to planned 

Route 11 improvements and signalized intersections is tied directly to the buildout assumptions 

of the 2009 CLD report.   The 2009 buildout analysis was based on traffic projections for a 

specific quantity of retail and office space only.   Therefore, the incorporation of apartments as 

a land use within the GRDD will likely require that a revised MOU be created, supported by 

revised buildout assumptions and traffic modeling.   

 

 

 

 

                                                           
5 Granite Ridge Development District - Tax Increment Development Program and Financing Plan, adopted June 10, 2014.    

 

9/12/19

90 of 161



9/12/19

91 of 161



9/12/19

92 of 161



9/12/19

93 of 161



9/12/19

94 of 161



9/12/19

95 of 161



9/12/19

96 of 161



9/12/19

97 of 161



9/12/19

98 of 161



9/12/19

99 of 161



9/12/19

100 of 161



9/12/19

101 of 161



9/12/19

102 of 161



9/12/19

103 of 161



9/12/19

104 of 161



9/12/19

105 of 161



9/12/19

106 of 161



9/12/19

107 of 161



9/12/19

108 of 161



9/12/19

109 of 161



9/12/19

110 of 161



9/12/19

111 of 161



9/12/19

112 of 161



9/12/19

113 of 161



9/12/19

114 of 161



9/12/19

115 of 161



9/12/19

116 of 161



9/12/19

117 of 161



9/12/19

118 of 161



9/12/19

119 of 161



9/12/19

120 of 161



9/12/19

121 of 161



9/12/19

122 of 161



9/12/19

123 of 161



9/12/19

124 of 161



9/12/19

125 of 161



9/12/19

126 of 161



9/12/19

127 of 161



9/12/19

128 of 161



9/12/19

129 of 161



9/12/19

130 of 161



Planning & Development Department 
City Hall Annex 

33 Wakefield Street 
ROCHESTER, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03867-1917 

(603) 335-1338 - Fax (603) 330-0023 
Web Site: http://www.rochesternh.net 

Planning Board 
Conservation Commission 
Historic District Commission 
Arts & Culture Commission 

 
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
MONTHLY REPORT FOR AUGUST 2019 

 
The Planning Board, Conservation Commission, and Historic District Commission (HDC) all held 
their regular meetings in August.  The Arts & Culture Commission did not hold a regular meeting in 
August but they did hold their Annual Arts Awards.  You will find the summaries of the agendas 
and discussions further down in this report.  The Planning Board also held their August workshop 
meeting.  They held a discussion on possible zoning amendments for the Downtown Commercial 
District, received an update on surety and inspections, granted an extension on an approval for 
Farmington Associates, approved a 3-lot subdivision, and continued two applications to a future 
date.   
 
The Planning & Development Department remains extremely busy in general with many meetings 
with citizens, developers, applicants, and the processing of applications.  The Department received 
three (3) new applications for the September Planning Board meeting.  We will have a very busy 
meeting in September due to four additional continued applications that will be on the agenda.  In 
addition, we continued working with our consultants, VHB, on the Transportation Master Plan and 
will be looking to have a draft for an October Steering Committee meeting.  The Downtown Master 
Plan Steering Committee also met with the consultants for the Downtown Master Plan Chapter and 
we have begun the public outreach campaign.   I also participated in the monthly meeting of the 
Leadership Committee for the Economic Development Division of the American Planning 
Association, which I am a member.  I attended the monthly COAST Board meeting now that I am 
the representative for the City.  Staff also participated in the TRG meetings, pre-construction 
meetings, Minor Site Plan Review meeting, Special Downtown Review and the Metropolitan 
Planning Organization’s Technical Advisory Committee (MPO TAC) monthly meeting.  We are 
starting to see more interest in the development in the downtown.  We also continued work on a 
Zoning Amendment for the Downtown Commercial District for allowing housing on the first floor in 
certain instances.  That amendment went to the Planning Board in August and will be going back 
in September.  City staff met with representatives from NHDES on the Highfield Commons 
development and the issues revolving around the amount of work being done in relation to the 
permits they have (or don’t have).   

Michelle Mears was still out on maternity leave we brought in a planning consultant two days a 
week to fill in for her.  The temporary position is being filled by Elizabeth (Liz) Durfee.  Michelle will 
be coming back in September. 

 
 
 

9/12/19

131 of 161

http://www.rochesternh.net/


Monthly Report For August 2019   Page 2 
 

 

APPLICATIONS REVIEWED BY THE PLANNING BOARD  

 
Real Estate Advisors, Inc., 24 Jeremiah Lane (by Berry Surveying & Engineering) 
Amendment to an approved subdivision to change from 53-lots to 54-lots and change from 
72 units to 74 units. Case # 223 – 21 – A – 19 CONTINUED TO 9/9/2019  

 

Kenneth & Ingrid Pheonix, 8 Norway Plains Road (by Norway Plains Assoc.)  3-Lot 
subdivision and Conditional Use Permit.  Case # 222 – 63 – R2 – 19 APPROVED 

 

Waste Management of NH, 214 Rochester Neck Road (by Sanborn, Head & Assoc.) Site 
plan and Conditional Use Permit for expansion of a container storage area.   
Case# 268 – 2 – A – 19 APPROVED 
 

400 North Main Street, LLC, 400 North Main Street (by TF Moran, Inc.) Site plan for 
vehicle sales, and service.  Case# 114 – 2 – HC – 19 CONTINUED TO 9/9/2019 
 

Glenn Davids Integrity Auto, Inc., 415 North Main Street (by Berry Surveying & 
Engineering) Site plan to expand vehicle sales and service.  Case# 114 – 4&5 – HC – 19 
CONTINUED TO 9/9/2019 

 

Donald & Bonnie Toy, 418 Old Dover Road (by Berry Surveying & Engineering) 14-unit 
expansion of mobile home park. Case# 256 – 54-1 – A – 19 CONTINUED TO 9/9/2019 

 

Farmington Associates, LLC, 60 Farmington Road (by Tighe & Bond) Request for an 
extension to an approved site plan to construct a 163,000 sq ft shopping center.   
Case# 216 – 8,9,10 – GRD – 15 APPROVED 

 
 
 

 

APPLICATIONS REVIEWED BY THE CONSERVATION COMMISSION  

 

 1.  Minutes: Meeting Minutes of July 24, 2019 were reviewed and accepted. 
 
2.  Conservation Overlay District: None.  
 
3. NH Department of Environmental Services Applications: 

a) Index Packaging, Innovation Drive, Site Plan to build new industrial facility. Tax Map 256 
Lot 5. Wetland impacts proposed. 

 
The Con Com discussed this application and heard from three memebers who walked the property 
with the project engineer on August 3rd.   
 
 4. Discussion: Open. 
 
 5. Notice of Intent to Cut Wood or Timber / Intent to Excavate:  
    a) Notice of Intent to Cut - Tax Map 207-1, Chestnut Hill Rd / Little Falls Bridge Rd. 
    b) Notice of Intent to Cut - Tax Map 256A-66-21, Athenian Dr./Old Dover Road 
 

9/12/19

132 of 161



Monthly Report For August 2019   Page 3 
 
These items were discussed with no major concerns. 

 
6. New Business:   
a) Scheduling a site walk of 144 Meaderboro Rd to review proposed wetland/buffer impacts 
A brief discussion was had regarding this incomplete Planning Board application for a cell phone 
tower and related proposed wetland impacts associated with the proposed access driveway. 
 
7.  Reports:  
    a) Technical Review Group. 
    b) Planning Board. 

A Conservation Commission member provided updates to the others regarding the status of 
Planning Board applications currently under review. 
 

 8. Old Business: Open.  
 

 9.  Non-Public Session pursuant to RSA 91-A:3 II(d): Discussion of acquisition of real property 
and/or recent site walks and LACE sheets was had. 
 
10. Site Walks:   
The members held two site walks in August, one at 91 Innovation Drive and one at 144 
Meaderboro Rd.  Both of these properties are proposing wetland impacts associated with non-
residential development.  Both site walks did not have a quorum of members, and as such minutes 
were not taken. 
 

 

 

APPLICATIONS REVIEWED BY THE HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION  

 
 The Historic District Commission met on August 14, 2019 and approved the applications listed  
 below: 
   
   Pavan Reddy, 74 South Main Street Certificate of Approval for a building addition to  
  an existing structure.  Case# HDC 120 – 338 – DTC – 19  
 

 Troy Dillow, 32 Wakefield Street Certificate of Approval to allow a mural design on rear  
  of the building facing Barker Court.  Case# HDC 121 – 380 – DTC – 19  

 
  Granite State Investments, LLC, 45 Hanson Street Certificate of Approval for rehabilitation 
  of the existing building to include a new roof, siding, and windows.   
 Case# HDC 120 – 383 – DTC – 19  

 

 

The Planning Department Staff administratively approved 107 North Main Street for various 
minor repairs and paint; and 103 North Main Street for repair/replacing broken clapboards 
and trim;  

 

 

9/12/19

133 of 161



Monthly Report For August 2019   Page 4 
 

ARTS AND CULTURE COMMISSION ACTIVITIES  

 
 

The Arts and Culture Commission did not met this month.  

 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
James B. Campbell, AICP 
Director of Planning & Development 

9/12/19

134 of 161



 

 
 

 

  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August Programs # 
Adult Volleyball 104 
Advanced Senior Fitness 14 
Concert on the Common 587 
Hiking with Heather 7 
Public Swim East Rochester 562 
Public Swim Gonic 403 
Public Swim Hanson Pines 1,198 
Senior Aqua Zumba 90 
Senior Art 35 
Senior Breakfast/Cookout 60 
Senior Dance Lessons 15 
Senior Power Hour 79 
Senior Swim  109 
Senior Trips 9 
Senior Yoga Chair 17 
Senior Yoga Gentle 30 
SHS/BCA open Gym 1 
Summer Camp 150 
Swim Lessons Level 1+ 84 
Swim Lessons Toddler 25 
Teen Travel Camp 29 
August Total Participation 3,108 

From:  Lauren Krans, Recreation & Arena  
Date: September 10, 2019 
Re:  August 2019 Report 
 

To:  Blaine Cox, City Manager 
       Mayor McCarley 

Members of the City Council 

Rochester Art Awards 
Our department was once again recognized by the Rochester 
Arts and Culture Commission for our summer concert series, 
Concert on the Common. Our Program Coordinator Cindy 
Lamie has done a wonderful job at continuing this 90+ year old 
tradition by show casing local talent at the park. It is estimated 
that over 853 people attended the Concert on the Common 
program during the summer of 2019. 
 
Public Swim 
Our aquatics team had another successful summer. Our Swim 
Lessons had 233 registered participants for the summer, many 
of whom signed up for multiple lessons. The three public pools 
had over 6,9000 visitors for the entire summer. We’re proud 
that even with this high volume of patrons we had minimal fa-
cility closings and no serious incidents. This is a testament to 
our trained Lifeguards, Pool Attendants and Aquatics Facility 
staff. 
 
Summer Camp 
Last fall our Recreation & Arena Advisory Commission sup-
ported our recommended changes to the structure of our Sum-
mer Camp Staff. Mirroring other successful camp programs, 
this included having a “Camp Director” on site at each location. 
Our Camp Directors were returning staff members who are all 
certified NH teachers. Having these knowledgeable staff mem-
bers on site each day made this summer a HUGE success. These 
experienced staff members assist our camp counselors in uti-
lizing positive behavior intervention. Instead of focusing on 
negative behaviors, these Camp Directors guided our staff in 
re-directing campers and being proactive to avoid situations 
where bad behaviors may occur. Summer Camp Yellow Cards 
(department forms that document when a camper breaks a 
camp rule) were down by 25% this summer due to this new 
staffing strategy.  
 
Farmers Market at the Rochester Arena 
The Rochester Arena proved to be a great inclement weather 
location for the Rochester Farmers Market. The market re-lo-
cated to the Arena three times during the summer month. Out 
staff was extremely accommodating and feedback was very 
positive from the Farmers Market team! 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9/12/19

135 of 161

http://rochesternh.vt-s.net/recreation-arena/pages/adult-volleyball-0
http://www.rochesternh.net/recreation-arena/pages/concert-on-the-common-0
http://rochesternh.vt-s.net/recreation-arena/pages/senior-dance-lessons
http://rochesternh.vt-s.net/recreation-arena/pages/senior-power-hour-0
http://rochesternh.vt-s.net/recreation-arena/pages/senior-trips
http://rochesternh.vt-s.net/recreation-arena/pages/senior-yoga
http://rochesternh.vt-s.net/recreation-arena/pages/senior-yoga
http://rochesternh.vt-s.net/recreation-arena/pages/summer-camp-2014


 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

136 of 161



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Rochester Fire Department 

Mark E. Klose 

Chief of Department 

 

37 Wakefield Street                              Rochester NH, 03867                                 Tel (603) 335-7545 
www.rochfd.org 

 

To:  Blaine Cox, City Manager 

From:  Mark E Klose, Fire Chief 

Date: September 9, 2019 

Ref: Monthly Report for August 2019 

 

On behalf of the Rochester Fire Department, I am pleased to provide you with the following report. The report serves 

as a summary of the activities, incidents, projects and programs underway within the department. 

 

The above graph shows our runs for Fiscal Year 2020 with August’s data shown individually with their respective 

totals. For the month of August there were 213 calls for service.  Rochester Fire responded to a total of 389 calls for 

Fiscal Year 2020. 

 

10 5

84 89

13 14

22
34

29
28

15

36
3

6

0

50

100

150

200

250

July August

Severe Weather

False Call

Good Intent Call

Service Call

Hazardous Condition

Rescue Call

Overpressure/Rupture

Fire/Explosion

9/12/19

137 of 161

http://www.rochfd.org/


 

 
 
 

 
 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT OPERATIONS 

Managed shift coverage assignments 

Managed and organized equipment and supply purchases as needed 

Fire Department members spent 1.5 hours each Friday mentoring a student from the Monarch School 

Managed apparatus repairs as needed 

DEPARTMENT INFORMATION: 

Administration completed necessary shift transfers to equal out shifts to help with overtime. 

o 3 Shifts at 9 Firefighters (1 Captain, 1 Lieutenant and 7 Firefighters) 
o 1 Shift at 8 Firefighters (1 Captain, 1 Lieutenant and 6 Firefighters[B Shift]) 
o Manning Station 1 and Gonic Station 

The Fire Apparatus Committee continues to work on the new engine with Eastern Fire Apparatus and Toyne 

PERSONNEL: 

Members of the department continue to attend advanced firefighter courses and leadership classes.  

We have two members on active duty military assignments and one member on TAD. 

 FF Laferte is deployed on active duty with the United States Air Force 

 FF Taatjes is out on medical TAD 

 FF Berry is deployed on active duty with the United States Marine Corps 

RESPONSE ACTIVITY: 

August 19th – Rochester – Camper Fire. Engine 5, Rescue 1, Engine 3 and Engine 7 responded to mile marker 24, 

southbound, Spaulding Turnpike for a camper fire. Camper had a brake fire which was extinguished by the owner. 

Engine 3 and Engine 7 were cancelled, Engine 5 and Rescue 1 returned in service. 

August 21st – Strafford – Building Fire. Engine 5, Engine 7 and Chief 1 responded to Province Road in Strafford for a 

building fire. Arrived on scene and reported to Command. Stood by in staging.  Released by Command.  All 

apparatus returned to the City. 

August 22nd – Rochester – Camper Fire. Engine 3, Engine 5, Truck 1 and Engine 7 responded to Gear Road for a 

report of a camper on fire next a residence. Engine 3 arrived on scene with a pop up camper fully involved and 

starting to melt the siding off the garage. A hand line was pulled to cool the exposure and started to knock the fire 

down. The garage was checked for extension inside, no fire found. Overhauled the front of the garage and camper. 

The camper was plugged into an outlet in the garage. The camper experienced a lightning strike while camping and 

was experiencing electrical issues after that.  

August 29th – Sanford, ME – Building Fire. Truck 1 responded to the scene of a structure fire in Sanford, ME. Once 

on scene, Truck 1 and crew was tasked to go to the second floor of the 2 car garage to open the ceiling for fire 

attack. Once crews were finished, they were released and returned to the City. 

9/12/19

138 of 161



 

 
 
 

 
 
 

August 29th – Sanford, ME – Building Fire. Truck 1 and Engine 7 was requested to the scene of a structure fire at 

the same location as earlier in the day.  Crews were cancelled on arrival and returned to the City. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Mark E Klose 

Mark E Klose, Fire Chief 

9/12/19

139 of 161



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

140 of 161



 
“Equal Opportunity Employer” 

 

             ROCHESTER POLICE DEPARTMENT  

                                                                                                                                             POLICE COMMISSION 

                          23 WAKEFIELD STREET                                         

ROCHESTER NH, 03867-1933                                     DEREK J. PETERS 

                                                                                                                   Chairman 

         BUSINESS (603) 330-7127                                               DAVID R. STEVENS 

     PAUL R. TOUSSAINT                                               FAX  (603) 330-7159          Vice Chairman  

           Chief of Police                                                       www.rochesterpd.org                                         LISA M. STANLEY                                  

                                               “Dedication, Pride, Integrity"                                          Commissioner                                                                                                             
                  

  

         September 8, 2019 
 

TO: City Manager Blaine Cox 
 

RE: Monthly Report – August 2019 
 

 
 

OPERATIONS:  Ward 1 was the only Ward that met this period. Police issues brought up included 

concerns for how people park while stopping for yard sales. They were advised to call police if a hazard 

existed. There was a review of thefts from motor vehicles, burglaries and bicycle thefts and discussed 

ways to prevent becoming victims of those crime types. The current staffing, new officers and the 

training involved before an officer is “boots on the ground” was also discussed.  
 

The investigations bureau had 40 cases sent up from patrol for review or investigation. There are 

currently70 cases assigned. There were 17 cases presented to the Grand Jury all with true bills. There 

were six detective call outs (an aggravated sexual assault, reckless conduct, a wanted fugitive which 

resulted in SWAT activation, an overdose death, an officer involved shooting and an assist regarding 

bicycle thefts.) There were also 1polygraph and two backgrounds for dispatch underway.  There were 

403 pieces of evidence logged in, 85 items returned to owners and an additional 113 pieces destroyed. 
 

CEO/ COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT OFFICER: Off. Danie and Sgt. Babine have been doing 

research for the development of the new POP (Problem Oriented Policing) unit, and have met with other 

agencies. A proactive enforcement for the first day of school was organized to include motor vehicle 

enforcement and speaking with students and parents at bus stops. Officer Danie attended the Rochester 

Rise Up meeting.  
 

COMP STAT: Traffic stops dipped this period, attributed to staffing levels and an increase in calls for 

service. Proactive activity was completed on bicycle stops to verify serial numbers to ensure bikes were 

not stolen.  Thefts from motor vehicles were up again this period, many still from unlocked cars. We 

have completed public service announcements on social media and talked about this in Ward meetings. 

There was an increase in burglaries and two subjects were arrested in one case. Latent prints recovered 

at other scenes have been sent to the State Lab for comparison. Officers continue to monitor drug 

activity and provide information about rehabilitation programs to assist with substance abuse disorder.   
 

COMMUNICATIONS: The Communications Supervisor position has been filled. She has been 

covering open shifts during the hiring process for two open positions.  

 

 

9/12/19

141 of 161

file:///C:/Users/becky.warburton/Documents/My%20Documents/CITYMGR/www.rochesterpd.org


 
“Equal Opportunity Employer” 

DIVERSION:  It was a successful summer of Teen travel camp with 30 teens engaged with staff and 

developing friendships and mentorships. National Night Out on August 6 had an estimated 3000 in 

attendance during the evening. Nicole is working with the school district to implement the Youth 2 

Youth model following the completion of the Bridging the Gaps grant funding. Nicole was requested to 

sit on a Statewide Juvenile Justice Reform Group selected by Georgetown University as one of seven 

national groups to work on a Capstone project to improve our juvenile justice system and probation 

reform. Staff continues to work with the County’s 3-year strategic plans for the continuum of care to 

ensure law enforcement representation and connections to the Governor’s task forces.  

 

EMD USE:  Display and Deploy:  One 

   Display Only:   One  

 

FINANCIAL/PURCHASING: The bid for front line cruisers was opened. The low bidder was Irwin 

Ford in Laconia; they also hold the NH State bid. There is a delay from Ford in fulfilling orders. The 

2020 Interceptors have been completely redesigned, and none of the equipment will be transferrable. 

We may not see the cruisers until January or February. The backline cruiser was ordered and expected 

for delivery in late September. We continue to work on the on line crime reporting software. We are 

also continuing to wear-test models of outer load bearing vest carrier. Lastly, we were notified that we 

have been awarded slightly more than $27,000.00 in Justice Assistance Grant funds. We have begun the 

process to apply for those funds.  
 

FORFEITURE SPENDING: None 
 

HIRING:  We have posted the evidence technician job. Officers Miller, Flathers and Root will start 

their first day on August 5. Recruits Riddle, Coffey and Crawford graduated from the Academy on 

August 23. We still have four open police positions and held a PT test as part of the hiring process on 

August 10, followed by oral boards. The next step is the Commission interviews.  
 

HONOR GUARD: The Honor Guard will participate in the upcoming September 11 memorial at the 

central fire station.  
 

PROSECUTION - ADULT: There were 344 new cases with 423 charges. There were 109 guilty pleas, 

100 not guilty, 50 cases nol prossed and 24 cases continued. There were 104 who failed to appear, 15 

found guilty by the court, 17 cases dismissed by the court and 4 cases placed on file.  
 

PROSECUTION - JUVENILE: Juvenile prosecution had 20 petitions. There were 18 arraignments 

(17 set for trial, 1 resolved by plea, 3 rescheduled). There were 1 review hearing, 5 violation hearings, 1 

emergency placement hearings. 4 trials resolved by plea. Additionally Lt. Gould completed 11 

investigations (complaint and warrant) for bail jumping. She also completed 1 investigation for 

contempt and 12 motions to impose suspended sentences.   
 

RENTAL PROPERTY OWNERS ASSOCIATION:  At the August 1, 2019 meeting, Lt. Bossi and 

discussed the recent increase in bicycle thefts and what the Department has been doing to investigate 

these. Lt. Bossi provided a staffing update and discussed recent activity in the City. Lt. Bossi answered 

additional questions about camera in rental properties and where they can be placed.  

9/12/19

142 of 161



 
“Equal Opportunity Employer” 

 

TRAINING: A refresher training was held for our crossing guards. All of the CIT officers attended the 

Halias Safety Symposium at UNH.  

 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

 
 

Paul R. Toussaint 

Chief of Police 

9/12/19

143 of 161



Rochester Police Department
July 2019 Comp Stat Report

9/12/19

144 of 161



July 2019 Field Activities

Specific Crimes Jul-19 Jul-18 % Change Jun-19 % Change May-19 YTD 19 YTD 18 % Change YTD 17

Traffic Stops 273 737 -63% 323 -15% 458 2636 6168 -57% 4033

Arrests from Stops 19 41 -54% 17 12% 10 117 234 -50% 154

Summons 25 52 -52% 18 39% 11 106 398 -73% 244

Warnings 212 618 -66% 273 -22% 418 2312 5343 -57% 3535

No Action 12 20 -40% 14 -14% 13 88 160 -45% 97

Accidents 81 100 -19% 104 -22% 70 459 609 -25% 568

Summons from ACs 2 4 -50% 3 -33% 1 11 19 -42% 14

Arrests from ACs 3 6 -50% 6 -50% 6 29 37 -22% 34

Field Interviews 18 15 20% 12 50% 7 49 59 -17% 95

DWI 8 7 14% 11
-27%

5 42 48 -13% 17

Narcotics 1 3 -67% 3
-67%

2 12 12 0% 17

Alcohol 7 4 75% 8
-13%

3 30 36 -17% 17

DWI from Accidents 2 3 -33% 3 -33% 3 11 13 -15% 17

9/12/19

145 of 161



July 2019 Property Crimes
             All Incident Reports

Specific Crimes Jul-19 Jul-18 % Change Jun-19 % Change May-19 YTD 19 YTD 18 % Change

YTD 2019 

Closure Rate

YTD 2018 

Closure Rate YTD 17

Burglary 21 5 320% 11 91% 7 50 47 6% 20% 17% 44

Shoplifting 15 17 -12% 13 15% 12 121 137 -12% 103% 91% 153

Theft from a Building 18 10 80% 13 38% 8 80 97 -18% 21% 9% 112

Theft from M/V  

(including Parts)
33 3 1000% 34 -3% 19 95 52 83% 6% 2% 100

All Other Theft 31 37 -16% 21 48% 9 58 58 0% 7% 9% 75

M/V Theft 4 3 33% 3 33% 0 18 15 20% 33% 27% 14

Vandalism 39 44 -11% 31 26% 39 179 185 -3% 44% 37% 209
Total Property 161 114 41% 115 40% 94 601 544 10% 36% 29% 663

Arrests

Specific Crimes Jul-19 Jul-18 % Change Jun-19 % Change May-19 YTD 19 YTD 18 % Change YTD 17

Burglary 4 3 33% 2 100% 0 10 8 25% 6

Shoplifting 7 22 -68% 14 -50% 11 125 125 0% 100

Theft from a Building 3 2 50% 0 0% 6 17 9 89% 14

Theft from M/V   

(including Parts)
2 1 100% 1 100% 0 6 1 500% 8

All Other Theft 0 8 -100% 2 -100% 1 4 5 -20% 7

M/V Theft 0 0 0% 3 -100% 1 6 4 50% 2

Vandalism 11 11 0% 19 -42% 14 79 68 16% 63

Total Property 27 44 -39% 39 -31% 33 237 212 12% 194

9/12/19

146 of 161



All Incident Reports

Specific Crimes Jul-19 Jul-18 % Change Jun-19 % Change May-19 YTD 19 YTD 18 % Change

YTD 2019 

Closure Rate

YTD 2018 

Closure Rate YTD 17

Possession 13 14 -7% 16 -19% 11 72 84 -14% 85% 81% 111

Drug Events 37 N/A N/A 34 9% 40 149 N/A N/A N/A

Overdoses 15 24 -38% 13 15% 25 75 100 -25% 90

Fatal 2 2 0% 0 0% 2 6 8 -25% 13

Total Drug 50 38 50 0% 51 221 184 214

Arrests

Specific Crimes Jun-18 % Change Jun-19 % Change May-19 YTD 19 YTD 18 % Change YTD 17

Possession 10 9 11% 13 -23% 9 61 68 -10% 105

July 2019 Drug Incidents

11
3

47

4

63

10

90

13

82

6

75

6

0

20

40

60

80

100

Overdoses Fatalities

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

9/12/19

147 of 161



July 2019 Violent Crimes
All Incident Reports

Specific Crimes Jul-19 Jul-18 % Change Jun-19 % Change May-19 YTD 19 YTD 18 % Change

YTD 2019 

Closure Rate

YTD 2018 

Closure Rate YTD 17

Homicide 0 1 -100% 0 0% 0 0 1 -100% 0% 0% 0

Robbery 1 0 0% 1 0% 1 4 10 -60% 75% 50% 18

Aggravated Assault 5 3 67% 8 -38% 10 36 37 -3% 58% 54% 34

from DV* 3 2 50% 2 50% 4 11 17 -35% 73% 71% 10

Simple Assault 35 39 -10% 43 -19% 32 197 243 -19% 63% 50% 239

from DV* 15 26 -42% 25 -40% 21 100 119 -16% 70% 69% 113

Total Violent 46 42 10% 52 -12% 43 237 291 -19% 49% 39% 291

Arrests

Specific Crimes Jul-19 Jul-18 % Change Jun-19 % Change May-19 YTD 19 YTD 18 % Change YTD 17

Homicide 0 0 0% 0 0% 0 1 0 0% 0

Robbery 0 0 0% 0 0% 0 3 5 -40% 7

Aggravated Assault 0 2 -100% 6 -100% 5 21 20 5% 16

from DV* 0 2 -100% 1 -100% 4 8 12 -33% 8

Simple Assault 14 19 -26% 29 -52% 23 125 122 2% 99

from DV* 10 11 -9% 18 -44% 13 70 82 -15% 61

Total Violent 14 21 -33% 35 -60% 28 150 147 2% 122

9/12/19

148 of 161



July 2019 Threshold
Crime Monthly Average Normal Range Current Month Activity Level

Accidents 86 71-100 82 Normal

Traffic Stop 804 470-1138 273 Low

DWI 7 4-10 8 Normal

Robbery 2 0-3 1 Normal

Aggravated Assault 6 3-9 5 Normal

Simple Assault 39 31-48 35 Normal

Burglary 9 6-13 21 Moderately High

Shoplifting 25 18-32 15 Slightly Low

Theft from Building 18 11-25 18 Normal

Theft from MV 16 7-24 33 Moderately High

MV Theft 3 0-5 4 Normal

Vandalism 35 27-44 39 Normal

Possession 16 10-22 13 Normal

Crime Monthly Average Normal Range Current Month Activity Level

Violent 47 37-57 46 Normal

Property 122 94-151 161 Moderately High

9/12/19

149 of 161



Calls for Service 2018 v 2019

2337

5040

2909

10286

2710

6557

3824

13091

PRIORITY 1 PRIORITY 2 PRIORITY 3 TOTAL

Calls for Service 2018 v 2019

YTD 2018 YTD 2019

9/12/19

150 of 161



YTD Calls for Service 2018 v 2019

1982

2325 2347

2228

2030

1769
1674 1661

1516

1738

1854 1864

2122

2336

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 19 Jul 19

9/12/19

151 of 161



July 2019 Proactive Hours by Shift

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

450

J U N J U L A U G S E P O C T N O V D E C J A N  F E B M A R A P R  M A Y J U N  1 9 J U L  1 9

Midnight Days Evenings

9/12/19

152 of 161



9/12/19

153 of 161



9/12/19

154 of 161



  

Rochester Public Library 

65 South Main St. 
Rochester, NH 03867 
 

 

Main Desk:  (603)  332-1428 
Reference:             335-7550 
Children’s:             335-7549 
Fax:   335-7582 
        www.rpl.lib.nh.us 

 
MONTHLY REPORT 

August 2019 

 
 

  There were a total of 15,895 items circulated with 10,421 people visiting 
the library in the month of August.  One hundred eighty-six patrons used the 
library’s Internet computers for 453 hours.  Current number of patron 
registrations is 39,215.  Interlibrary loan activity included 74 materials borrowed 
from other libraries and 215 loaned to other libraries. 

 

August brought to a close all of the Libraries summer reading programs.  
On Friday, August 2nd, the library hosted a celebration for all the children that 
took part in this year’s summer reading program.  The over 350 children 
registered in the program reading thousands of books. Small weekly prizes were 
given to each participant as a reward for their accomplishments. 

 

The Adult Summer Reading program had readers earning a raffle entry for 
each book read this summer.  The prize raffle had over 1,500 entries, with one 
person taking home a prize basket. 

 

The Teen Reading program had forty-two teens from 6th-12th grade logging 
in 466 hours of summer reading.  Participants receive free ice cream coupons 
after turning in weekly reading logs.  Each week there were drawings for gift 
cards to local businesses and trivia questions earning the teen’s small prizes.  
Most of the weekly prizes were purchased with a very generous donation given 
by Feliciano Limousines and BT Roofing.  At the end of the program, grand 
prize raffles were drawn with all the participants included.   This program is a 
success thanks to generous donations from Hilltop Fun Center, Boston Red 
Sox, Canobie Lake Park, Barnz’s Barrington Cinema, Fisher Cats, Golick’s 
Dairy Bar, JetPack Comics, Portland Sea Dogs, Water Country, and York’s Wild 
Kingdom.  

 

The Library was pleased to present the artwork of Adult Circulation Staff 
member, Nicholas Gagnon during the month of August.  Nick’s photographs 
have been published in the Appalachian Mountain Club Outdoors Magazine, 
Best Read Guide and online as a web article for the Appalachian Mountain 
Club.  His work is inspired by growing up in New England and exploring the 
varying landscapes and changing seasons. 

 

In addition to the print versions of available books, 305 of our library 
patrons downloaded 1,659 e-books to media devices through the library’s web 
site this month.  The RPL website also enabled 54 patrons access to the Mango 
Languages, Chilton, and Legal Forms databases along with 305 digital 
downloads from Hoopla. 

9/12/19

155 of 161



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

156 of 161



Tax Annual

Year Warrant Amount % Amount %

2019 Semi Annual 32,520,503 30,719,050.17          94.46% 1,801,452.83 5.54%

2018 Warrant 63,834,824 62,966,764.21          98.64% 868,059.79 1.36%

2017 60,524,791 59,987,774.14          99.11% 537,016.86 0.89%

2016 58,196,003 57,961,362.53          99.60% 234,640.47                0.40%

2015 56,938,119 56,804,022.48          99.76% 134,096.52                0.24%

2014 55,068,779                54,984,839.16          99.85% 83,939.84                  0.15%

2013 53,324,262                53,256,355.98          99.87% 67,906.02                  0.13%

2012 50,952,912                50,911,100.61          99.92% 41,811.39                  0.08%

2011 48,856,892                48,818,037.40          99.92% 38,854.60                  0.08%

2010 47,308,832                47,276,182.53          99.93% 32,649.47                  0.07%

2009 46,898,827                46,869,070.57          99.94% 29,756.43                  0.06%

2008 46,522,769                46,505,442.89          99.96% 17,326.11                  0.04%

2007 42,964,450                42,950,023.04          99.97% 14,426.96                  0.03%

2006 40,794,160                40,784,880.95          99.98% 9,279.05                    0.02%

2005 38,024,453                38,017,087.20          99.98% 7,365.80                    0.02%

2004 36,065,496                36,057,439.13          99.98% 8,056.87                    0.02%

2003 33,310,579                33,305,001.65          99.98% 5,577.35                    0.02%

2002 29,725,878                29,720,692.63          99.98% 5,185.37                    0.02%

2001 26,943,136                26,937,802.91          99.98% 5,333.09                    0.02%

2000 25,415,248                25,411,043.45          99.98% 4,204.55                    0.02%

1999 22,973,308                22,969,992.33          99.99% 3,315.67                    0.01%

1998 30,592,529                30,587,901.82          99.98% 4,627.18                    0.02%

1997 29,835,914                29,831,457.52          99.99% 4,456.48                    0.01%

1996 27,726,424                27,722,073.99          99.98% 4,350.01                    0.02%

1995 27,712,029                27,709,191.61          99.99% 2,837.39                    0.01%

1994 26,989,803                26,987,206.62          99.99% 2,596.38                    0.01%

1993 25,611,050                25,608,622.48          99.99% 2,427.52                    0.01%

1992 24,746,736                24,744,940.64          99.99% 1,795.36                    0.01%

1991 24,296,285                24,294,507.32          99.99% 1,777.68                    0.01%

3,975,123.04             

Tax Collector

Doreen Jones, CTC

Collected Uncollected

City of Rochester Tax Collector's Office
August 31, 2019

9/12/19

157 of 161



CSS Count FY 20

Month Total $$ # of Payments

July 832,265.53$         656

Aug 86,735.97$           451

Sept 

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

June

Totals 919,001.50$        1107

Doreen Jones, CTC

Tax Collector

City of Rochester Tax Collector's Office
                

9/12/19

158 of 161



Online Citizen Self Service Totals FY 19

Month Total $$ # of Payments

July 70,642.36$           32

Aug 25,303.24$           16

Sept 3,047.61$             7

Oct 28,402.05$           5

Nov 48,552.23$           14

Dec 123,132.45$         117

Jan 161,311.48$         237

Feb 93,687.34$           189

Mar 575,396.95$         231

Apr 96,946.04$           290

May 73,913.99$           443

June 250,193.77$         440

Totals 1,550,529.51$     2021

Doreen Jones, CTC

Tax Collector

9/12/19

159 of 161



 

 

 
 

Intentionally 
left blank… 

City Clerk’s Office 

 

9/12/19

160 of 161



  Rochester, New Hampshire 

   Inter office Memorandum 
 

 

 TO:              Blaine Cox 

      City Manager 

  

 FROM:         Todd M. Marsh 

                      Director of Welfare 

 

 SUBJECT:  Analysis of Direct Assistance for August 2019. 

 

 DATE:          September 5, 2019 
 

            This office reported 192 formal interview notes for the month. 

 

                 Voucher amounts issued were as follows: 

 

  33               24 

 Families Single 
                                                                                             9 new         2 new 

  

      Burial ..................................................................           00.00            650.00 

      Dental .................................................................           00.00              00.00 

      Electricity ...........................................................      1,631.60            147.10 

      Food ...................................................................               .00              00.00 

      Fuel heating .......................................................             0.00              00.00 

      Mortgage ............................................................               .00              00.00 

      Prescriptions .....................................................           00.00              00.00 

      Rent ....................................................................      8,447.54         6,171.50  

      Temporary Housing ..........................................         995.00            365.00 

      Transportation ...................................................         359.00              00.00 
  

TOTAL                                                                                  $11,433.14          $7,333.60 

                                                                                                                           

This represents an average cost per case/family of $346.45 and case/Individual of $305.56 for this 

month. 

 

Total vouchers issued:  $18,766.74 
 

There was an increase of $5,699.57 in assistance issued this month compared to  

August 2018.  There was a decrease of $504.19 in vouchers issued this month compared to last 

month.    

 

We received reimbursements from the Interim Assistance Program SSI, State Medicaid and Personal 

Reimbursements totaling $0.00. 

 

NOTES 

Increasing rental rates and insufficient homeless shelter capacity has resulted in higher rental 

assistance costs and increased temporary housing assistance (motels) until transitions to permanent 

housing or available homeless shelters.  The Welfare Department continues to minimize the increases.  

9/12/19

161 of 161


	Agenda: Special City Council 
	2.    Resolution: 79-E 73-77 North Main Street

	Agenda: Workshop
	5.    Amendment: Chapter 275 Regarding Downtown Commercial District
	6.    Presentation: Wayfinding Status Update
	7.    Department Reports
	7.1    Assessor's Office
	7.2    Building, Zoning, and Licensing Services
	7.3    City Clerk's Office
	7.4    Department of Public Works
	7.5    Economic & Community Development
	7.6    Finance Office
	7.7    Planning & Development Department
	7.8    Recreation & Arena
	7.9    Rochester Fire Department
	7.10  Rochester Police Department
	7.11  Rochester Public Library
	7.12  Tax Collector's Office
	7.13  Welfare Department



	AGENDA SUBJECT: Wayfinding
	COUNCIL ACTION ITEM INFORMATION ONLY: 
	undefined: Off
	undefined_2: On
	FUNDING REQUIRED YES: Off
	NO: On
	RESOLUTION REQUIRED  YES NO: 
	undefined_3: Off
	undefined_4: On
	FUNDING RESOLUTION FORM YES NO: 
	undefined_5: Off
	undefined_6: On
	AGENDA DATE: September 17, 2019
	DEPT HEAD SIGNATURE: Michael Scala - Signature on file
	DATE SUBMITTED: September 9, 2019
	ATTACHMENTS YES NO: 
	undefined_7: Off
	undefined_8: On
	 IF YES ENTER THE  TOTAL NUMBER OF PAGES ATTACHED: 
	COMMITTEE: 
	CHAIR PERSON: 
	DEPUTY CITY MANAGER: 
	CITY MANAGER: 
	FINANCE OFFICE APPROVAL: 
	SOURCE OF FUNDS: 
	ACCOUNT NUMBER: 
	AMOUNT: 
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED: YES
	APPROPRIATION REQUIRED YES NO: 
	LEGAL AUTHORITY: 
	SUMMARY STATEMENT: Update on Wayfinding quotes and locations of signs for phase 1.  Phase 1 includes downtown parking lots.
	RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the Wayfinding proposal for phase 1.  Allow staff to send out an RFP for Phase 1 of the Wayfinding project.


